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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a high investment risk may be attached. In
particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record of profitability nor any obligations to forecast future profitability.
Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM and the business sectors or countries in
which the companies operate. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that
it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high
market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM is publication on the internet website operated by the Stock Exchange. Listed
companies are not generally required to issue paid announcements in gazetted newspapers. Accordingly, prospective investors should
note that they need to have access to the GEM website in order to obtain up-to-date information on GEM-listed issuers.
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Financial Summary B1i5 &

For the year ended 31st March,
BEZA=1+—BLFE

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
—TTNE —ZTHFE —TERFE —TTLEFE | ZBENE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FEIT FET FET FET
RESULTS ES
Turnover 0] 299,896 274,662 47,106 52,453 52,002
Profit/(loss) before taxation BREADEF, (BE) 78,780 76,017 (28,599) 8,402 24,938
Taxation Bi1A (4,024) (3,587) (2,879) (2,605) (4,674)
Profit/(loss) for the year FRRFEG
attributable to equity holders wmA (E518) 74,756 72,430 (31,478) 5,797 20,264
Dividends %8 (5,890) - - - -
At 31st March,
R=A=+—8
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
—EENFE —TTRF ZTTRTF —ITTLF | ZBENEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Total assets BEHE 275,146 358,671 330,838 346,432 395,775
Total liabilities BERRE (12,388) (27,250) (24,907) (22,037) (24,341)
Shareholders’ funds EERES 262,758 331,421 305,931 324,395 371,434
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Chairman’s Statement FJE#RE

Dear Shareholders and Directors,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to present the
Group's annual report for the year ended 31st March, 2008 to the shareholders.

The Group has been stable in terms of research and development,
manufacturing, distribution and trading of light source products. Turnover
and profit attributable to shareholders for the year amounted to approximately
HK$52.00 million and HK$20.26 million respectively, as compared to turnover
and profit attributable to shareholders approximately HK$52.45 million and
HK$5.80 million respectively of last year.

Whilst market competition in relevant lighting product segments has got more
intense, with the Group’s success on (i) research and development in its core
products among competitors producing the same products, the production
cost of the Group has strong competitive advantage, (ii) cost control and (iii)
unigue Tungda brand products, the Group maintains a competitive and cost
advantage and stable gross profit margin.

The Group takes an active role in finding strategic cooperative partners in
contemplation to expand its products offer to cater different needs of
customers.

During the year 2007/08, the Group has continued to participate in
international lighting fairs which provided invaluable opportunities to promote
our products to potential new customers around the world.

The Group has been distributor of GE Lighting since 1996 and has been
appointed by GE Lighting as its exclusive distributor for lighting fixtures in
Hong Kong and Macau in January, 2004. The appointment enables the Group
to expand its product offerings to include lighting fixtures and also symbolizes
our successful long term cooperation with GE Lighting.

The Group has been actively seeking capable distributors to expand its sales
and distribution network.

I would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to all the
customers, staff and Directors for their continuous support, dedication and

contribution to the Group, as well as shareholders and business partners for
their full support and confidence in the Group.

Chu Chien Tung
Chairman

27th June, 2008
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS REVIEW

Operating Results

For the year ended 31st March, 2008, the Group’s turnover was approximately
HK$52.00 million, representing a decrease of approximately 0.85% from
HK$52.45 million last year.

The gross profit margin for the year ended 31st March, 2008 increased to
61.74% compared to 56.60% for the same period in 2007. The improvement
is attributable both to the increase in relative proportion in sales of house
brand products to agency brand products and increase in profit margin of
agency brand products.

House brand products that usually give higher gross profit margin as compared
to agency brand products accounted for about 82.15% of total turnover for
the year 2007/08 (2006/07: 77.24%).

Other Income and Gain, net

The major component of other income and gain, net approximately HK$3.69
million was interest income for the year 2008 as compared to approximately
HK$2.02 million for the same period in 2007. The increase was accounted by
the higher cash and bank balances of the Group.

Selling and Administrative Expenses

The selling expenses, which primarily comprised of delivery, exhibition and
promotion, and salaries expenses, amounted to approximately HK$1.59 million
and remained stable in line with the business for the year ended 31st March,
2008, as compared to approximately HK$1.44 million for the same period in
2007.

The administrative expenses for the year ended 31st March, 2007 comprised
primarily of staff remuneration, depreciation, entertainment, fee for audit
services, rental and management fee expenses, adhoc production line and
equipment renovation and maintenance expenses and adhoc repair expenses
for typhoon damages to the Fujian factory building and infrastructure. The
administrative expenses for the year ended 31st March, 2008 decreased to
approximately HK$9.25 million as compared to approximately HK$21.84
million with the corresponding period in 2007 because of the adhoc expenses
of last year did not recur and the general decrease in administrative expenses.

Net Profit

As a result of the factors discussed above, the profits attributable to
shareholders for the year ended 31st March, 2008 amounted to approximately
HK$20.26 million as compared to approximately HK$5.80 million for the same
period in 2007.

Tungda Innovative Lighting Holdings Limited Annual Report 2007/08

%fiﬁ n‘% /\ﬁ_j\jfﬁ

B 7 & 7 B BR

4 g g

HE_ZTZN\FEZA=1+—HBIFE NEBLEBED
/452,000,000 7T 8 EF 2 52,450,0008 T A 49
0.85%¢

HE_ZEN\F=ZA=1+—RHLEFEZTFERENE
61.74% * M—EZtFRHEA56.60% * It TIARHER
B (R hRE SR BRI R 8 E SR D EE (I3 0N K2 (R 32 SR R EE A
/)8 0o

EAR—MREREREELRSNATREERE_TZ
+/ ENFENAEEELN82.15% (ZEE R/ T+
F:77.24%) °

Hablg A K Wi R 48
ZTEEN\FFE 2 EMBA R K EFEL 53,690,000
BT EBAMNBRA ZZETLFRBAUNA
2,020,000 T - 1818 Jh N A S EIR € RIRTTE I
FEke

HERTHAX

HE-_ZTZTN\F= ﬂ +—BLEFEZHERAXY
/1,590,000 0 8 — & Ytiﬂﬁﬁé’]fﬁﬁﬂ 440,000
BB HEERITERREE EEHREE
Femze

TETHFFETBRAITIERBEEIHM e &
WE B ER HeREREBAX AESRRBE R
RlgEERREE R REEREEEY RER S EAE R
ERNBERCEREBEER AFTBRAINR
9,250,000 T iEE — T T+ F R HARI4 521,840,000
BrAL ERHNEEEEAFITHAIMERZI
ERARFEER BARFH—RITHRAITNEBRD -

oAl

ER LaframER BE-SET/\F=A=+—A8H1
FFE 7 R R EAE % R 4 420,260,0008 7T M —Z T+
FRIHI% 55,800,000/ T

07



Management Discussion and Anal

Sales and Marketing
For the year ended 31st March, 2008, the Group participated in the following
major international lighting exhibitions:

Lightfair International 2007 8th-10th May, 2007

ysis EIRREER R o

HERTHER
BE_ZZN\F=ZA=+—HILFE AEFEL2EUT
RAUBRRARES:

New York, USA

—ETtFHRANBETH EEAAL
Hong Kong International Lighting Fair 2007 28th-31st October, 2007 Hong Kong
7 7 B R % £ R 2007 —EEEF+ AT+ NAHE=T—H B

Through these exhibitions, the Group promotes “Tungda” brand and products
to potential customers from all over the world. Tungda’s induction lamps and
its potential new product microwave sulphur lamps had been featured in the
international lighting magazine “Switch”, and “Tungda” had been featured
as one of the Hong Kong brands in the Hong Kong Trade Development
Council’s “Hong Kong Enterprise”.

Suspension on and Arrangement for the Resumption of Trading of
Shares, and Execution of Warrant by Officers of the Commercial
Crime Bureau of the Hong Kong Police Force

Trading in the shares of the Company has been suspended on the Stock
Exchange since 29th July, 2004. The management understands and shares
the concern of the shareholders of the Company in relation to the suspension
of share trading. The management had appointed a financial advisor in January,
2005 and has sought advice from various professionals with a view to resume
the share trading as soon as possible.

In order to resume the share trading as soon as possible and smooth the
relevant process, the Company has been actively communicating with relevant
section of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since January, 2007.

With reference to the Company’s announcement on 16th March, 2005, officers
of the Commercial Crime Bureau of the Hong Kong Police Force ("CCB")
have executed a warrant for search and seizure against the premises of the
Group (“CCB Event”).

In the Company’s announcement on 17th January, 2007, the bail conditions
of the three executive directors, Mr. Chu Chien Tung, Mr. Chu Chick Kei and
Mr. Chu Sen Hei, have been lifted and they were released unconditionally
and no charges have been brought against them.

Resources are being diverted in order to resume the share trading and to

handle the CCB Event. The Group’'s business and product investment
development plan is interrupted and deferred.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE
As at 31st March, 2008, the Group's shareholders’ funds amounted to
approximately HK$371.43 million (2007: HK$324.40 million). Cash and cash
equivalents was approximately HK$327.30 million as at 31st March, 2008,
compared to HK$265.62 million as at 31st March, 2007. Increases in cash
stemmed primarily from income generated from operations. The Board believes
that the Group has adequate funds to support its operations and capital
expenditures for future expansion and development.

The Group’s gearing ratio, defined as the Group’s total debt to total equity,
was 5.05% (2007: 5.54%).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD AND MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND
AFFILIATED COMPANIES

There were neither significant investment held by the Group nor material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated companies for the years
ended 31st March, 2008 except as disclosed in note 15 to the financial
statements of the annual report.

CHARGE ON GROUP ASSETS

One of the leasehold land and land use rights in the PRC has been pledged to
a bank to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group as disclosed
in note 14 to the financial statements of the annual report.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

As most of the Group’s trading transactions, monetary assets and liabilities
were denominated in Renminbi, United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars,
the impact of the foreign exchange exposure of the Group was considered to
be minimal and there was no significant adverse effect on the normal
operations of the Group. As at 31st March, 2008, no related hedges were
made by the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Group and the Company had no contingent liabilities as at both 31st
March, 2008 and 2007.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
Segment information of the Group is set out in note 6 to the financial
statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31st March, 2008, the Group had about 74 full time employees. The
Group’s employees were remunerated according to the nature of their duty
and market trend, with discretionary bonus and benefit of retirement scheme,
share options and necessary training. Total staff costs for the year amounted
to approximately HK$2.66 million (2007: HK$4.75 million).

ACQUISITION OF AND IMPAIRMENT ON DEPOSITS PAID FOR
ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group had planned to expand and develop its manufacturing capacity by
setting up additional and new production lines. During the year 2004, the
Group has entered into three major contracts for the purchases of machineries
of adjusted total contracts amount HK$80,990,000. Deposits HK$67,105,000
were paid and included in the balance sheet as at 31st March, 2004 in respect
of the three contracts.

The Group further entered into a contract in July, 2004 of amount
approximately HK$21,493,000 and paid HK$7,965,000 as deposit in August,
2004 for the contract for the purchases of machineries which are
complementary contract for the automobile high intensity discharge (“HID")
xenon lamp (a popular type of car headlamps in developed countries including
European Union and Japan) production line.

The machineries to be acquired by the Group will enable the Group to (1)
expand the production capacity of its existing induction lamp production line;
(2) expand its product line to include microwave sulphur lamps (a new and
innovative type of mercury-free environmental friendly and energy-saving light
source products); and (3) expand its product line to include automobile HID
xenon lamps. The machineries are relevant to the section “Expansion of
manufacturing capacity and capability” under the heading “BUSINESS
OBJECTIVES AND IMPLEMENTATION PLANS” of the Company’s Prospectus
dated 19th July, 2002.

The machineries for the induction lamp production line contract amount of
HK$21,000,000 have been delivered respectively in April and May, 2004 and
the contract was completed.

The microwave sulphur lamp production line contract amount of
HK$20,180,000 and of deposits paid amount of HK$9,880,000 in which
HK$3,500,000 has been recognised as property, plant and equipment in 2006.
The contract has been cancelled by signing agreement with the machinery
vendor on 16th June, 2006 whereas the Group has the right to use the forfeited
deposit within a year from the date of agreement being cancelled. According
to the terms being agreed, the machinery vendor has refunded HK$957,000.
The remaining balance of HK$5,423,000 has been forfeited by the machinery
vendor as the Group had not placed any new order on or before 15th June,
2007.
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Management Discussion and Analysis & ¥ & [ 57 5@ E2 5 AT

For the automobile HID xenon lamp production line contract amount of
HK$39,810,000 (the “first xenon lamp contract”), deposit was paid in March,
2004 amount of HK$38,865,000.

For the HID xenon lamp production line contract amount of HK$21,493,000
(the “complementary xenon lamp contract”), first deposit with amount of
HK$7,965,000 was paid in August, 2004.

However, the expansion and development of manufacturing capacity plans
were disrupted and delayed since trading in the shares of the Company is
suspended on the Stock Exchanges and, in particular, the CCB Event. In view
of expected and possible technical obsolescence for the microwave sulphur
lamp and the HID xenon lamp production lines, the Group has requested,
negotiated with and sought concession of the machinery vendors to rescind
the contracts and to refund deposits already paid for the contracts.

The Group and the HID xenon lamp machinery vendor have in May, 2006,
with agreement signed on 12th March, 2007, basically agreed

1. to cancel the contracts;

2. the machinery vendor will refund HK$10,758,000 (included exchange
realignment HK$824,000) and will forfeit HK$36,896,000 from the total
amount HK$46,830,000 of deposits paid by the Group; and

3. should the Group place new order to the machinery vendor within twelve
months from the date of agreement signed, the Group is entitled to
apply the amount HK$36,896,000 of deposit being forfeited as for
payment of the new order.

The machinery vendor has refunded the amount HK$10,758,000 (included
exchange realignment HK$824,000) during the year ended 31st March, 2008
and forfeited the amount HK$36,896,000 as the Group had not placed any
new order on or before 11th March, 2008.

PROSPECTS

As the Group’s products have longer life hours and high energy efficiency. In
addition, more customers are now concerning the importance of environmental
protection, and therefore they are intending to use the Group’s products
instead of traditional light source products.

The Group will continue to pursue and focus on its core business of being a
provider of good quality light source products and will use its best endeavor

to maximise return to its shareholders in the years ahead.

The worst situation has been passed, the Group’s management is optimistic
to the future development and prospect of the Group.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management EZE N SR EEEER

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. CHU Chien Tung, aged 55, is the chairman and the chief executive officer
of the Company. He is a member of Political Consultative Conference of Henan
Province, Vice-Chairman of Putian Overseas Chinese Association. He was
awarded “The Outstanding Entrepreneur” in Fujian Xianyou County. He was
appointed as a director of the Company on 19th December, 2001. He is
currently a part-time professor of the Faculty of Light Sources and Illuminating
Engineering in Fudan University. Since the establishment of Tungda Industrial
Limited in 1984, Mr. Chu has participated in manufacturing, trading and sales
of lighting sources products. Mr. Chu is the founder of Tungda Industrial
Limited in 1984.

Mr. CHU Chick Kei, aged 50, is the vice chairman and deputy chief executive
officer of the Company. He was appointed as a director of the Company on
19th December, 2001. He joined Tungda Industrial Limited in August 1986
and has been engaged in manufacturing, trading, sales, management and
administration. He is the brother of Mr. Chu Chien Tung.

Mr. CHU Sen Hei, aged 28, is a director and the son of Mr. Chu Chien Tung.
He was appointed as a director of the Company on 10th April, 2002. He
joined Tungda Industrial Limited in April 2000 and is responsible for technical
development of lighting sources, sales for overseas market and administration.

Non-Executive Director

Dr. FUNG Shiu Lun, Anthony, aged 47, is an non-executive director of the
Company. He was appointed as a director of the Company on 1st June, 2004.
Dr. Fung graduated from Massachusetts Institute of Technology with dual
Bachelor of Science degrees in Chemical Engineering and Chemistry, and a
Master degree in Chemical Engineering Practice. He also holds a Master degree
in Business Administration from The Wharton Business School of University
of Pennsylvania and a Doctoral in Philosophy degree in Chemical Engineering
from the University of Delaware of the United States (“US").

Dr. Fung is currently the General Manager of a private investment firm focusing
on healthcare industry in the People’s Republic of China. Previously, Dr. Fung
has extensive management consultancy experience in financial services,
manufacturing, and energy sectors in Asia and US. He is the holder of 15 US
patents on the development of new catalytic materials and their related
petrochemical and refining processes.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management EZE N SR EEEER

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. ZHU Lei Bo, aged 45, is an independent non-executive director of the
Company. He was appointed as a director of the Company on 30th September,
2003. Mr. Zhu graduated from Tongji University in the People’s Republic of
China ("PRC") with a doctoral degree in Engineering. Mr. Zhu had been the
General Manager of China Luoyang Float Glass Group Company Limited, a
company established in the PRC and has extensive experience in production,
coordination and technology management. He is currently a Vice President of
China Building Material Industry Association.

Mr. HONG Yong Hwan, aged 50, is an independent non-executive director
of the Company. He was appointed as a director of the Company on 18th
September, 2003. Mr. Hong graduated from National Taiwan Normal University
and Korea University. He had worked as a managing director for overseas
business of Dr. Peng Technology listed in Shanghai stock market and is presently
working for a company investing in mining and resources in the People’s
Republic of China.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. ZHU Qing Chun, aged 40, is the deputy general manager of Light Power
and Tungda Fujian. He graduated from Xiamen University in 1990 with a
bachelor’s degree in Economics. Prior to joining the Group in June 2000, he
was a deputy general manager of Shanghai Chientung Industrial Limited, a
trading company based in Shanghai, the PRC.

QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT AND COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LO Wai Shing, aged 34, was the Qualified Accountant and Company
Secretary of the Group. Mr. Lo joined the Group on 15th March, 2007 and
resigned on 21st August, 2007. He was responsible for accounting and
company secretarial functions of the Group. He has over 10 years of experience
in auditing, accounting and financial management. He is a member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lo holds a Bachelor's degree in
Accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock Exchange”) has
promulgated the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules which sets out corporate
governance principles (the “Principles”) and code provisions (the “Code
Provisions”).

The Company has applied most of the Principles and complied with most of
the Code Provisions as far as possible and practicable except for:

(1) the Code Provision A.2.1 which requires the separation of the roles of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer;

(2)  the Code Provision A.4.1 which requires non-executive directors should
be appointed for a specific term subject to re-election;

(3) the Code Provision B.1.1 which requires the establishment of a
remuneration committee with specific written terms of reference; and

(4)  the Code Provision C.2.1 which requires at least annually conduct a
review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control.

An explanation of the deviations is set out at below. The Company will review
its current practice of the Principles and Code Provisions in order to comply
with the requirements of the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has complied with the requirements of director’s securities
transaction stated in the GEM Listing Rules. All the directors of the Company
have confirmed that they have complied with the requirements as set out in
the GEM Listing Rules for the year ended 31st March, 2008.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEETING
The Board comprises of six members and their positions are as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. CHU Chien Tung
Mr. CHU Chick Kei
Mr. CHU Sen Hei

Non-executive Director
Dr. FUNG Shiu Lun, Anthony

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. HONG Yong Hwan
Mr. ZHU Lei Bo

Profiles of Directors are set out on page 12 to 13 of this annual report for the
year ended 31st March, 2008.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Directors, with relevant and sufficient experience and qualification have
exercised due care, fiduciary duties to the significant issues of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”). Mr. CHU Chien Tung is the brother of Mr.
CHU Chick Kei and the father of Mr. CHU Sen Hei. All other directors have no
relation to each other or all Directors have no business relation with the Group.

The Directors held four meetings and the attendance of the Directors for the
financial year ended 31st March, 2008 is as follows:

Name of Director Attendance
Mr. CHU Chien Tung 4/4
Mr. CHU Chick Kei 4/4
Mr. CHU Sen Hei 4/4
Dr. FUNG Shiu Lun, Anthony 3/4
Mr. HONG Yong Hwan 4/4
Mr. ZHU Lei Bo 4/4

The Board may also approve matters by resolution in writing. Information of
material issues, due notice of meeting and minutes of each directors’ meeting
have been sent to each of the Directors for their information, comment and
review.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.

The Company does not have an officer with the title of “Chief Executive
Officer”. Mr. CHU Chien Tung is responsible for the management of the Board
and strategic development of the Company. Mr. CHU Chick Kei and Mr. CHU
Sen Hei respectively are responsible for the day to day management of the
Group. Mr. CHU Chien Tung is also responsible for the overall management
and decision of the Group. This constitutes a deviation of the Code Provision
of A.2.1. As Mr. CHU Chien Tung has extensive experience in the industry,
the Board considers that the arrangement is beneficial to the Group as a
whole. Despite the aforesaid, the Board will review such arrangement from
time to time and consider the appointment of a Chief Executive Officer in the
best interest of the Company and its shareholders.
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Corporate Governance Report

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive Directors are not
appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the next Annual General Meeting and no contract is currently
in force with them.

The relevant retiring Director has offered himself for election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.

The Board comprises of only two independent non-executive directors and is
not in compliance with Rule 5.05 of the GEM Listing Rules which requires,
among others, every board of directors must include at least 3 independent
non-executive directors.

The Company will appoint at least 3 independent non-executive directors in
order to comply with the relevant requirement of the GEM Listing Rules.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has not established a remuneration committee, the Board of
the Directors is authorised by the Shareholders at Annual General Meeting to
fix the remuneration of the Directors whereas a Director shall abstain from
voting in respect of any remuneration and fees paid to his interest. The
Company will arrange for the setting up of a remuneration committee in
order to comply with the Code Provision.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee’s principal duties are the review and supervision of the
Company’s financial reporting process and internal control system. The existing
Audit Committee comprises only of two Independent Non-executive Directors
and is not in compliance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules which
requires, among others, the audit committees must comprise a minimum of 3
members.

The Company will arrange to appoint at least 3 Audit Committee members in
order to comply with the relevant requirement of the GEM Listing Rules.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Nomination committee of the Company is not considered necessary after the
assessment of the present situation of the Company. The Board will review
the profile of the current Directors and nominate directors (if any) on a regular
basis in order to ensure that the composition of the Board is capable to fulfill
its obligation and responsibility.
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Corporate Governance Report

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The statement by the auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities is set out in the independent auditor’s report on page 28. An
amount of HK$450,000 (2007: HK$450,000) for audit services was charged
to the Group’s income statement for the year ended 31st March, 2008. There
was no significant non-audit service assignment undertaken by the external
auditors during the year.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company has not conducted an annual review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control as the Board of Directors considered that resumption
trade of shares is need to dealt with priority during the year. At the same
time, an effective internal control is one of important factors for resumption
trade of share; therefore, the Company will conduct a review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control in order to comply with the
Code Provision.

PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Group and the auditors of the Company also set
out their responsibilities in the independent auditor’s report in the Annual
Report of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2008.
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Report of the Directors ZH& s

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31st March, 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2008 are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 30 of the annual report.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in respect of
the year ended 31st March, 2008.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group during
the year are set in note 24 to the financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 33 of the annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31st March, 2008, the Company’s reserve available for distribution as
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
amounted to HK$96,078,000. Under the laws of the Cayman Islands, the
share premium account is distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary course of business. The share
premium account may also be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results of the Group for each of the five years ended 31st
March, 2008 is set out on page 5 of the annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements during the year in the Group’s property, plant and
equipment are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

There was no movement in the Company’s authorised or issued share capital

during the year. Further details in relation to the authorised and issued share
capital of the Company are set out in note 22 to the financial statements.
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Report of the Directors ZH& s

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. CHU Chien Tung (Chairman)
Mr. CHU Chick Kei

Mr. CHU Sen Hei

Non-executive Director:
Dr. FUNG Shiu Lun, Anthony

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. HONG Yong Hwan
Mr. ZHU Lei Bo

In accordance with the Articles 86 and 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Chu Chick Kei shall retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Each of Messrs. Chu Chien Tung, Chu Chick Kei and Chu Sen Hei has entered
into a service contract with the Company. Particulars of these contracts, except
as indicated, are in all material respects identical and are set out below:

1.

each service contract of Messrs. Chu Chien Tung, Chu Chick Kei and
Chu Sen Hei is of two years duration commenced on 1st August, 2004
which appointment shall continue after the expiry of the fixed term
until terminated by either party giving to the other not less than three
months’ prior written notice or payment of salary in lieu thereof, such
notice to expire upon the initial term of two years;

each of Messrs. Chu Chien Tung, Chu Chick Kei and Chu Sen Hei is
entitled to a monthly salary plus a double pay equivalent to one month'’s
salary;

each of Messrs. Chu Chien Tung, Chu Chick Kei and Chu Sen Hei is
entitled to such management bonus by reference to the consolidated
net profits of the Group after taxation (“Net Profits”) as the board of
directors may approve provided that the aggregate amount of
management bonuses payable to all executive directors in respect of
any financial year of the Group shall not exceed 20% of the Net Profits
for the relevant financial year; and

each of Messrs. Chu Chien Tung, Chu Chick Kei and Chu Sen Hei shall
abstain from voting and not be counted in the quorum in respect of
any resolution of the board of directors regarding the amount of annual
salary and management bonus payable to himself.
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Report of the Directors ZH& s

Mr. Hong Yong Hwan, has entered into a service contract with the Company.
Particulars of the contract are set out below:

the service contract of Mr. Hong Yong Hwan is of initial fixed term of
one year commenced on 18th September, 2003 which appointment
shall continue after the expiry of the initial fixed term and either party
may terminate the appointment by giving the other party at least one
month’s notice in writing expiring not earlier than the initial fixed term
of one year; and

Mr. Hong Yong Hwan is entitled to a monthly salary.

Dr. Fung Shiu Lun, Anthony has entered into a service contract with the
Company. Particulars of the contract are set out below:

the service contract of Dr. Fung Shiu Lun, Anthony is of initial fixed
term of one year commenced on 1st June, 2004 which appointment
shall continue after the expiry of the initial fixed term and either party
may terminate the appointment by giving the other party at least one
month’s notice in writing expiring not earlier than the initial fixed term
of one year; and

Dr. Fung Shiu Lun, Anthony is entitled to a monthly salary.

Save as disclosed above, none of the independent non-executive directors
and the non-executive director has entered into any service contract with the
Group.

Save as disclosed herein, none of the directors has entered into any service
agreements with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.
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Report of the Directors ZH& s

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

At 31st March, 2008, the interests of the directors and the chief executive
officer of the Company and their associates in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which were notified
to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO) and required to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rule 5.46
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on Growth Enterprise Market
of the Stock Exchange (“GEM Listing Rules”) relating to securities transactions
by directors, were as follows:

Long positions
(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company and
underlying shares

EERRORAEBRKRS 2 EE

RIBENF=ZA=1—H FRFEERTHRERR
BEZBMBEAL NAQRREEMBEER (EER
EFMHEG ([BHRBEERD]) BEXVER) 27
MABBRO T HERBEES B RMIEXVEETR
SAMEHMEARAREEMERZMBERRAFA ([H3Z
) 2tz (BREBIEZES RBEEMBBIEURER
BIENEERA 2 BEIXE)  RARBER AR AR
BEEFRMEGRIIEIS2EFE 2 ERM RS HAR
BRI ERE S EWARR (TRIRR EWRA ) B
SAIREMERETES XD ZRECHE N A R
RPN

iy
(a) ZAREEREE01ETZEERRIEHERG

Percentage of

Number of the issued

issued ordinary share capital

shares held of the Company

Name of director Capacity e 81T HARRE BT
EEpR 52 EEREE REBS
Mr. Chu Chien Tung Held by controlled corporation (Note) 560,000,000 50.7%

RERRELE mXEEERE (BT

Note:

These shares were held indirectly by Tungda Industrial Limited (“Tungda
Industrial”) through its beneficial interest in the entire issued share capital of
Standard Exceed Limited. Messrs. Chu Chien Tung, Chu Chick Kei and Chu Siu
Chun (father of Messrs. Chu Chien Tung and Chu Chick Kei) jointly hold the
entire issued share capital of Tungda Industrial.

Tungda Innovative Lighting Holdings Limited Annual Report 2007/08

ET

ZERMBRALE (KB BARQF ([RAILE (&
E) |) #EBEF Standard Exceed Limited & & 2 317 A%
A EREEMERE KBRRELE FEREERELA
EEE (RBRRAERFEREEZRXR) KAFHBR
ATE (£H) 23 BHITRA-

21



Report of the Directors ZH& s

(b) Share options (b) BRE

Number of

Number of underlying

Name of directors Capacity options held shares

BEEHA 55 FrEBRERE HERGOGHA

Mr. Chu Chien Tung Beneficial owner 1,054,944 1,054,944
KERLE EnfEBA

Mr. Chu Chick Kei Beneficial owner 1,054,944 1,054,944
KEREE EnfEBA

Mr. Chu Sen Hei Beneficial owner 10,549,440 10,549,440
KERBELE EnfEBA

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors and chief executive officer
of the Company and their associates has any interest or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations at 31st March, 2008.

SHARE OPTIONS
Pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme adopted on 12th July, 2002,
the board of directors may grant share options to any directors, full time and
part time employees of the Group and the consultant or adviser of the Group.
Details of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note 23 to the
financial statements.

No share option is granted or exercised during the year.
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A summary of the movements in the Company’s share options during the

year is as follows:

ARBBRERFAZEHHMMT

Number of share options

=

R

BREHE
Closing
Exercise price At Grant or At
price  at the date 31st March, exercised 31st March,
per share of grant 2007 during 2008
Date of grant Exercisable period ghkf HRELAH R-BEtE the year RZBENE
BB TEHE e ZWmE ZA=t-B  ERBEIAR ZR=1-H
HKS HK$
AT A
Directors
Bz
Mr. Chu Chien Tung 21st November, 2003 29th November, 2003 - 0.452 0.440 1,054,944 - 1,054,944
28th November, 2013
REREE ZEEZET-ACTH ZZZET-ACTAAEE
ZE-ZET-AZt/H
Mr. Chu Chick Kei 21st November, 2003 29th November, 2003 - 0.452 0.440 1,054,944 - 1,054,944
28th November, 2013
REREE ZERRZET-ACT-H TEEZET-ACTARE
Z2-ZET-AZTAR
Mr. Chu Sen Hei 21st November, 2003 29th November, 2003 - 0.452 0.440 10,549,440 - 10,549,440
28th November, 2013
AREEE N TEEZET-ACTARE
Z2-ZET-AZTAR
Sub-total /N3t 12,659,328 - 12,659,328
Employees
&8
3rd October, 2003 22nd October, 2003 - 0345 0345 33,140,672 - 33,140,672
21st October, 2013
“22=£1A=H ZE2ECETACTIRE
ZZ-ZE+AZ+-8
Total 43t 45,800,000 - 45,800,000
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The directors consider that it is not appropriate to value the share options on
the ground that certain crucial factors for such valuation are variables which
cannot be reasonably and objectively determined. Any such valuation of the
share options based on speculative assumptions in respect of such variables
would not be meaningful and the results thereof may be misleading to the
shareholders of the Company.

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded in the balance
sheet of the Company until such time as the options are exercised, and no
charge is recognised in the income statement in respect of the value of options
granted, if any, in the year. Upon the exercise of the share options, the resulting
shares issued are recorded by the Company as additional share capital at the
nominal value of the shares, and the excess of the exercise price per share
over the nominal value of the shares is recorded by the Company in the share
premium account. Options which lapse or are cancelled are deleted from the
register of outstanding options.

Save as disclosed herein, none of the directors and chief executive officer and
their associates has any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any associated corporations (within
the meaning of the SFO) as recorded in the register to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Other than the option holdings disclosed above, at no time during the year
was the Company, its holding companies, fellow subsidiaries or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate. None of the directors
of the Company, or their spouses or children under 18 years of age, had any
rights to subscribe for the shares of the Company, or had exercised any such
right during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group paid rental amounting to HK$108,000 to and
purchased amounting to HK$24,000 from Tungda Industrial. Details of such
transactions are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no other contracts of significance to which the
Company, its holding companies, fellow subsidiaries or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Group was entered into or existed
during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31st March, 2008, the following substantial shareholders (other than a
director or chief executive officer of the Company) who have interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company

the Directors & SH 2|5

EEAK
FRABTLHFIBEERERREEREERRIEX
MOEBHZEL-

FERR

REBARRIRFEZRMEGIIFEIZ6 FEENELCM
sk RZZZENF=ZRA=1T—H BRARREEH
TTIRABESIN AT Z 2RI K AR B h FE B #E

SL P UKA
MERE

iy
AR A EFREE0.01ETZEER

Number of

issued ordinary

shares held
in the Company Approximate
RELQTH percentage
e 81T B
Name of shareholders BREREE BB ZEREE BREBS L
Standard Exceed Limited (Note 1) Standard Exceed Limited (#7z#1) 560,000,000 50.7%
Tungda Industrial Limited (Note 1) RAIHE (KE)BRAR (K1) 560,000,000 50.7%
Mr. Chu Chien Tung (Note 2) KERRGE (HfiF2) 560,000,000 50.7%
Ms. Chan Pik Kam (Note 3) BREZ 2+ (Kfit3) 560,000,000 50.7%

Notes: B 5t

1. Standard Exceed Limited is wholly and beneficially-owned by Tungda Industrial 1. Standard Exceed Limited JyHEBE AT % (%£H) 28 &

which in turn is beneficially-owned as to 33.33334% by Mr. Chu Chien Tung,
33.33333% by Mr. Chu Chick Kei and 33.33333% by Mr. Chu Siu Chun. Mr.
Chu Siu Chun has no management role in the Group.

2. Under Section 336 of the SFO, Mr. Chu Chien Tung is deemed to have interests
in all the shares of the Company which Tungda Industrial has interests as he is
entitled to exercise more than one-third of the voting power at general meeting
of Tungda Industrial. The other two shareholders of Tungda Industrial, namely
Messrs. Chu Chick Kei and Chu Siu Chun, are not so deemed as they are not
entitled to exercise more than one-third of the voting power at general meeting
of Tungda Industrial.

3. Ms. Chan Pik Kam is the wife of Mr. Chu Chien Tung. Under Section 336 of the
SFO, she is deemed to have interest in all the shares in which Mr. Chu Chien
Tung is interested.

Save as disclosed above, no other person (other than a director or chief
executive officer of the Company) has an interest or a short position in the
shares and underlying shares as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group, in aggregate,
accounted for approximately 84.20% of the Group’s total turnover and the
largest customer accounted for approximately 39.95% of the total turnover.
The five largest suppliers of the Group in aggregate accounted for
approximately 74.35% of its total purchases for the year. Purchases from the
largest supplier accounted for approximately 30.49% of its total purchases.

None of the directors, their respective associates, or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) has any interest in any of the five largest customers and the five
largest suppliers of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2008.

All transactions between the Group and its customers were carried out on
normal commercial terms.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the year, the board of directors is not aware of any business or interest
of each director, management shareholder and their respective associates that
compete or may compete with the business of the Group and any other
conflicts of interest which any such person has or may have with the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on pro-rata basis to the existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee’s principal duties are the review and supervision of the
Company’s financial reporting process. The existing audit committee comprises
two independent non-executive directors, Mr. Hong Yong Hwan and Mr. Zhu
Lei Bo.
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During the year, the audit committee held four meetings and performed the
following duties:

1. reviewed the audited financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31st March, 2007.

2. reviewed the unaudited financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the three months ended 30th June, 2007, for the six
months ended 30th September, 2007 and for the nine months ended
31st December, 2007.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the Rules 5.28 to 5.39 of the GEM Listing
Rules during the year ended 31st March, 2008, except that the Group has
not yet established a remuneration committee, a nomination committee, the
non-executive director and independent non-executive directors of the
Company are not appointed for specific terms and are subject to re-election
at the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the
provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association, only two independent
non-executive directors are appointed and the Company has not conducted
an annual review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control during
the year and to the date of this report.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company to re-appoint Messrs. TING HO KWAN & CHAN, CERTIFIED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment, as auditor of the Company. The Company had not changed
its auditor in the proceeding three years,

On behalf of the Board

CHU CHIEN TUNG
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 27th June, 2008
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Independent Auditor’s Report %837 % EiAh i &

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
TUNGDA INNOVATIVE LIGHTING HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Tungda Innovative Lighting
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 30 to 84, which comprise
the consolidated and Company balance sheets as at 31st March, 2008, and
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
the agreed terms of the engagement, and for no other purposes. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
as to whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31st March, 2008 and of
the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

TING HO KWAN & CHAN
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)

Hong Kong, 27th June, 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement

Are WA TRR

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 B Z =—EZENF=A=+—HIFF

2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Mt &t FET FET
Turnover EXEE 6 52,002 52,453
Cost of sales HERA (19,892) (22,763)
Gross profit EH 32,110 29,690
Other income and gain, net L ONS T e 5 7 3,686 2,016
Selling and distribution costs HE R D HEAAR (1,590) (1,443)
Administrative expenses THHAX (9,249) (21,843)
Operating profit KRR 8 24,957 8,420
Finance costs BhE A A 9 (19) (18)
Profit before taxation RRF1 A1 % F 24,938 8,402
Taxation Bi1A 10 (4,674) (2,605)
Profit for the year attributable to EARRREEER
the equity holders of the Company Y Fl 11 20,264 5,797
Earnings per share =1kl
- Basic —H R 12 1.83 HK cents &1l | 0.52 HK cents 1l

The notes on pages 35 to 84 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

e BERE

As at 31st March, 2008 R=ZZFZENF=A=+—H

2008 2007
—EENE —TELF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
K& FET FE&T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W -WEREE 13 46,907 49,803
Leasehold land and land use rights TAE b o 4 Hb{F A 14 9,971 9,412
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, WM BE KEiE 2
plant and equipment HEANEN 16 - 9,934
56,878 69,149
Current assets RBEE
Current portion of leasehold land and METH R i
land use rights E AR RIEE S 14 222 206
Inventories FE 17 5,608 5,786
Trade and other receivables EUREZRIEREMERER 18 5,754 5,654
Tax refundable AR [ 18 16 16
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFE 19 327,297 265,621
338,897 277,283
Current liabilities ik Ih=Ri
Trade and other payables BNESHIBEREMEMNER 20 18,184 17,812
Obligation under a finance lease BB G AYE
— due within one year —R—FAEH 21 110 145
Tax payable FERTHIIR 5,577 4,042
23,871 21,999
Net current assets REBEEFE 315,026 255,284
Total assets less current liabilities EEHERRBARE 371,904 324,433
Non-current liabilities FkRBEE
Obligation under a finance lease mbE TR A A 21 470 38
Net assets EEFE 371,434 324,395
Equity R
Capital and reserves attributable to AATRE
the equity holders of the Company EBhEARZE
Share capital & 2 22 11,056 11,056
Reserves &1 24 360,378 313,339
Total equity BRES 371,434 324,395

The financial statements on pages 30 to 84 were approved and authorised
for issue by the Board of Directors on 27th June, 2008 and are signed on its

behalf by:

EI0EBIA L UBHREEN BT NFAAA-TLH
BERef e RRETZ IhHTIEETRREE:

CHU Chien Tung
RERREE
DIRECTOR
s

The notes on pages 35 to 84 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Balance Sheet

As at 31st March, 2008 R=ZZFZENF=A=+—H

2008 2007
—EENE ZETLF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
(i3 FET FET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries ME AR E 15 3,128 3,128
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H h fE AR 3K 104 131
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUL B 8 A B 3RIR 105,155 105,427
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEE 19 51 169
105,310 105,727
Current liabilities REBaE
Other payables HEEMAEREXR 1,304 2,001
Net current assets REBEERE 104,006 103,726
Net assets EERE 107,134 106,854
Equity R
Capital and reserves attributable to EATRR
the equity holders of the Company EBhEXR#E
Share capital [N 22 11,056 11,056
Reserves 1 24 96,078 95,798
Total equity mER 107,134 106,854
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27th June, R-ZTZENFENA -+ LBEZES I ERIFET

2008

CHU Chien Tung

RERKE
DIRECTOR
EF

The notes on pages 35 to 84 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity #R&

B &R

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 R=EZENF=A=+—H

(note 24) (note 24)
(Fi5t24) (Hfsz24)
Share Share Special Translation ~ General  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
BA  ROBE BHEE ELfE -REE RKREEA A%t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FHET
At 1st April, 2006 RZEZRFNA—A 11,056 101,669 (2,128) 5,989 17,332 172,013 305,931
Exchange realignment EREE - - - 12,666 - - 12,666
Surplus of capital paid BMERRR - 1 - - - - 1
Transfer to general reserve BEZ-REE - - - - 51 (51)
Profit for the year ERET - - - - - 5,797 5,797
At 31st March, 2007 —EE+F=A=1—H 11,056 101,670 (2,128) 18,655 17,383 177,759 324,395
Exchange realignment ERZERE - - - 26,775 - - 26,775
Profit for the year EMET - - - - - 20,264 20,264
At 31st March, 2008 R-ZENE=A=+-H 11,056 101,670 (2,128) 45,430 17,383 198,023 371,434
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

,Z\v x Eﬁui//|b£$|§i§

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 #Z=%

FENFZA=1—HILFE

2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
K & FET FA&T
Operating activities REEK
Profit before taxation R B4 AR A 24,938 8,402
Adjustments for: FEE:
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE KERZE
plant and equipment 2 Wz 7 (208) -
Interest income B U A 7 (2,578) (1,922)
Depreciation and amortisation e REH 8 5,901 5,622
Finance costs A& AR 9 19 18
Operating profit before changes EECEHRMLERT
in working capital 28,072 12,120
Decrease in inventories FERD 501 3,108
Decrease/(increase) in trade and EUWE 5 IE R
other receivables ﬁﬁﬂﬁguﬂlﬁﬁ SO A (3 A0) 154 (1,106)
Decrease in trade and other payables FET & 55018 K H Ath fE 1
iR mﬂd\ (661) (272)
Cash generated from operations REEKFMBRES 28,066 13,850
Hong Kong profits tax refunded REIFBEFEH — 3,115
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid B RECEMER (3.475) (5,067)
Net cash generated from REXBMBRELFHE
operating activities 24,591 11,898
Investing activities REZH
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME BRERE&E (37) (1)
Purchase of leasehold land and land use rights BB E A& 1 & -1 {F i 14 = (2,333)
Sale proceeds on disposal of property, HEME -KEMEEZ
plant and equipment FR8RA 360 -
Deposits refunded for acquisition of WK% B R
property, plant and equipment JEZETRRK 16 10,758 957
Interest received 2 U F B 2,578 1,922
Net cash generated from REFEBRE
investing activities HeRE 13,659 535
Financing activities R SE B
Interest and finance charges paid ERFIERRERY (19) (18)
Repayment of capital element of a finance lease B E LB A I HER (218) (136)
Net cash used in financing activities RMETBHMARESREE (237) (154)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents HeRESESEEM 38,013 12,279
Cash and cash equivalents FYzEEeRESEE
at beginning of the year 265,621 242,985
Exchange gain on cash and ReRBELEEZ
cash equivalents i RTALE 23,663 10,357
Cash and cash equivalents
at end of the year FRZEERALEE 19 327,297 265,621
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Notes to the Financial Statements BFf&§ER3k Mi =t

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands. The shares of the Company are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (“GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 26th July, 2002.

The Company’s ultimate holding company is Tungda Industrial Limited
("Tungda Industrial”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and the principal
activities of the Group are trading and manufacturing of light source
products. The address of its registered office is Century Yard, Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681GT, George Town, Grand Cayman,
British West Indies. The address of the principal place of business of the
Company is Room 1903A, 19th Floor, Nanyang Plaza, 57 Hung To Road,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon.

At the request of the Company, the Company’s shares have been
suspended from trading on the Stock Exchange since 29th July, 2004.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"), which also
include Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS"”) and Interpretations
("Int") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirement of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in
note 5.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRS that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group. Note 4 provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to the

balance sheet date.

(b) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the power
to govern the financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting
rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing

whether the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the

date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the
acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an acquisition
is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange,
plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minority
interests. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value
of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference

is recognised directly in the income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure

consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. The
results of the subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on

the basis of dividends received and receivable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold land and land use rights are lump sum upfront payments
to acquire long-term interest in lessee-occupied properties.
Leasehold land and land use rights relating to buildings of the
Group are stated at cost and are amortised over the period of the
lease on the straight-line basis to the income statement.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the balance sheet at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any,
using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Buildings 20 years or the unexpired
term of lease, whichever

is shorter

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%
Leasehold improvements 50%
Plant and machinery 10%
Motor vehicles 20%

The assets’ residual values (if any) and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. An item
of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. The gain or loss on derecognition
of the asset, calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item, is included in the
income statement in the period the item is derecognised.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether
the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

Leases of assets are classified as finance leases when the leases
transfer substantially all risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of the assets to the Group. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

(i) Finance leases

Assets held under finance leases are recognised in the
balance sheet at amounts equal to the fair value of the
leased assets, or, if lower, the present value of the minimum
lease payments, each determined at the inception of the
lease. The corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges,
on the finance leases are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. All assets held under finance leases are
classified as property, plant and equipment, except for those
properties held to earn rental income which are classified
as investment property, in the balance sheet.

Depreciation and impairment loss are calculated and
recognised in the same manner as the depreciation and
impairment loss on property, plant and equipment as set
out in note 3(d), except for the estimated useful lives cannot
exceed the relevant lease terms, if shorter.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between finance
charge and the reduction of the outstanding liabilities. The
finance charge is recognised in profit or loss over the period
of the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Leases (Continued)

(ii) Operating leases (both as the lessee and lessor)
Where the Group is the lessee, lease payments under an
operating lease are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets and rentals receivable under
the operating leases are credited to the income statement
on a straight-line basis over the lease period.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost
of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials,
direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads
(based on normal operating capacity). Net realised value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value
and, after initial recognition, at amortised cost less any allowance
for impairment of bad and doubtful debts, except for the following
receivables:

(i)  interest-free loans made to related parties without any fixed
repayment terms or the effect of discounting being
immaterial, that are measured at cost less any allowance
for impairment of bad and doubtful debts; and

(i) short-term receivables with no stated interest rate and the
effect of discounting being immaterial, that are measured
at their original invoiced amount less any allowance for
impairment of bad and doubtful debts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Impairment of assets

(i)

40

Impairment of receivables

Current and non-current receivables that are stated at cost
or amortised cost are reviewed at each balance sheet date
to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the Group
about one or more of the following loss events:

- a significant financial difficulty of the debtors;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

For trade and other current receivables and other financial
assets carried at amortised cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition of these assets), where the effect of
discounting is material. This assessment is made collectively
where financial assets carried at amortised cost share similar
risk characteristics, such as similar past due status, and have
not been individually assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A
reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BFf&§ER3k Mi =t

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(h) Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to identify indicators that the
following assets may be impaired or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment (other than properties
carried at revalued amounts);

- leasehold land and land use rights classified as being
held under an operating lease; and

- investments in subsidiaries.

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount
is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its net selling price and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash flows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the unit
(or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs to sell, or value
in use, if determinable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

()]

Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)
- Reversals of impairment losses
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset's
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with bank and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value and,
after initial recognition, at amortised cost, except for the following
payables:

(i)  short-term payables with no stated interest rate and the
effect of discounting being immaterial, that are measured
at their original invoiced amount; and

(i) interest free loans from related parties without any fixed
repayment terms or the effect of discounting being
immaterial, that are measured at cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised directly
in equity, in which case they are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year, using tax rates (and laws) enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
However, if the deferred tax arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted for. Deferred tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the
deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax assets also
arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews and assesses the
recognised and unrecognised deferred tax assets and the future
taxable profit to determine whether any recognised deferred tax
assets should be derecognised and any unrecognised deferred
tax assets should be recognised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, except where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Tungda Innovative Lighting Holdings Limited Annual Report 2007/08

BT HS R M ot

3 IESHEEZHME @

(k)

/Eﬁ

ME&ELM—EM@ﬁE ﬁw'
HIBE BN ERNRER BIRER

ﬁ ﬁ
TR

BIRATR IR T4 AN [2 JE SR B ) - R IR AE £
A RHREERM 2R EAE FFAZA
FEFREZRENENHREA

BEMEDREEABEONEREGBE
EHBERGEMBREPHIEEEME
MERELE NAEEEL 28 H A
mutmﬁﬂﬁiéﬁmiﬁwﬁétﬁ
B2R 5 (EBEMRIN) MERZR
ﬁ%%@f&ﬁ%ﬁmﬂ%%ﬁﬁﬂ: J
MR BEERIBIVARGEE B 2 BIE] A E R
FIRRZ LR (ROEG)) B - WIE AR B3R 48
BEEHBEENEREER KA ERE
}Eﬁo

BERBEEZHRBATRR AR ATEHR
FERTOR N AR E R ZBERR-ETH
BN B ARE RO B E R R -

REEEER AEBSHFHCERRKR
HEREETEN IR E E R AR RERTRAE A

/j%}TEEﬁEwumLL%RIE,éﬁ %gﬁﬁ(ﬂé
RABRANELEHIAEESE S EHR-
REEGRHBRATREEECERERE

AR AT TR 3 s BR JE 7N 5% 1B AT 4% Il 3¢ [
ZERERRE B ERERE T A
AR 78 5, 5 SR 45 (o] Rl & 51 -

43



3

44

Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U]

(m)

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme in Hong Kong (the “MPF
Scheme"”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to participate in
the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The Group’s employer contributions vest with
the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China
are members of the Central Pension Scheme operated by the
Chinese government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of their covered payroll to the Central Pension
Scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation for the Group
with respect to the Central Pension Scheme is the required
contributions, which are charged to the income statement in the
year to which they relate.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provision are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

(o)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(i) Sale of goods
Revenue from the sales of good is recognised when the
Group has delivered the goods to the customers and the
customer has accepted the goods together with the risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods. Revenue is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

(ii) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

Foreign currency translation

(i)  Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in HK dollars, which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement, except
when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges or
qualifying net investment hedges.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as
equity instruments held at fair value through profit or loss,
are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary items are included in the
translation reserve in equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

(p)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from
the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(1) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
balance sheet;

(2) income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expense
are translated at the dates of transactions); and

(3) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a
separate component of equity.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is
engaged either in providing products or services (business
segment), or in providing products or services within a particular
economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject
to risks and rewards that are different from those of other
segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting system,
the Group has chosen business segment information as the
primary reporting format and geographical segment information
as the secondary reporting format for the purposes of these
financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

(a)

Segment reporting (Continued)

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities include
items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can
be allocated on a reasonable basis to that segment. For example,
segment assets may include inventories, trade receivables and
property, plant and equipment. Segment revenue, expenses,
assets, and liabilities are determined before intra-group balances
and intra-group transactions are eliminated as part of the
consolidation process, except to the extent that such intra-group
balances and transactions are between group entities within a
single segment. Inter-segment pricing is based on the similar terms
as those available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the
period to acquire segment assets (both tangible and intangible)
that are expected to be used for more than one period.
Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate assets,
interest-bearing borrowings, tax balances, corporate and financing
expenses.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is

considered to be related to the Group if:

(i)  directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries,
the party:

(1) controls, is controlled by, or is under common control
with, the Group;

(2)  has an interest in the Group that gives it significant
influence over the Group; or

(3)  has joint control over the Group;
(i) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;
(iii)  the party is an associate;

(iv)  the party is a member of the key management personnel of
the Company or its parent;
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(g) Related parties (Continued)
(v)  the party is a close member of the family of any individual
referred to in (i) or (iv);

(vi)  the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly-controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting
power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any
individual referred to in (iv) or (v); or

(vii) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a related
party of the Group.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs and
Interpretations that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the accounting current period of the Group.

There have been no significant changes to the accounting policies
applied in these financial statements for the years presented as a result
of these developments. However, as a result of the adoption of HKFRS
7, “Financial Instruments: Disclosures” and the amendments to HKAS 1,
“Presentation of financial statements: Capital disclosures”, there have
been some additional disclosures provided as follows:

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 7, the financial statements include
expanded disclosure about the significance of the Group’s financial
instruments and the nature and extent of risks arising from those
instruments, compared with the information previously required to be
disclosed by HKAS 32, “Financial Instrument: Disclosure and
presentation”. These disclosures are provided throughout these financial
statements, in particular in note 30.

The amendments to HKAS 1 introduces additional disclosure
requirements to provide information about the level of capital and the
Group's objectives, policies and processes for managing capital. These
new disclosures are set out in note 30.

Both HKFRS 7 and the amendment to HKAS 1 do not have any material
impact on the classification, recognition and measurement of the
amounts recognised in the financial statements.

The Group has not early applied any new standard, amendment or
interpretation that has been issued but is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see note 32).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
The Group’s management makes assumptions, estimates and
judgements in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
that affect the assets, liabilities, income and expenses in the financial
statements prepared in accordance with HKFRS. The assumptions,
estimates and judgements are based on historical experience and other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. While
the management reviews their judgements, estimates and assumptions
continuously, the actual results will seldom equal to the estimates.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, be definition, seldom equal to
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s net book value of property, plant and equipment as
at 31st March, 2008 was approximately HK$46,907,000. The
Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of one to ten
years, and after taking into account of their estimated residual
values. The estimated useful lives reflect the directors’ estimate
of the periods that the Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment. Management will increase the depreciation expense
where useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, or it
will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

(b) Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and the PRC.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is made.

(c) Fair value estimation

The carrying values less allowance for impairment, if any, of
financial assets and liabilities with a maturity of less than one
year, are a reasonable approximation of their fair values. The fair
value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated
by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current
market interest rate that is available to the Group for similar
financial instruments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

BT HS R M ot

6 EXBERIPDESR

The Group
rEE
2008 2007
—ZEENFE —EEHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F&T
Turnover EER
Sales of light source product SHE K IRE M 52,002 52,453

(a)

Business segments

The Group is organised into 2 operating divisions — manufacturing
and trading of house brand light source products and the
distribution of agency brand light source products. These two
operating divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its

primary segment information.

Segment information about these businesses is presented as

below:

(a)

House brand

B E

REBIZEBIEE RmAKMAREFT: K5 5
R REMNBERE SEH A RKE MR
HEEVE TR 7E il O 23 B 3 755 © DA L TR 36 75 BB P
TIREBBE T 20 B EFHE H B S FTK
BR R

BHEZEEBNDRERZSMT

b=

Agency brand

light source light source
products products
G mE RERIE  Consolidated
KRER HRER mE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET
Segment revenue Pl g
For the year ended HE—TENF
31st March, 2008 =H=1+—HIFE
Turnover o 42,724 9,278 52,002
Results ES
Segment results D EBEEAR 30,175 1,935 32,110
Unallocated corporate expenses, RO BAR X
net of other income HBR E MU A (9,731)
Interest income, net of FIEWA - HOBRELE AR
finance costs 2,559
Profit before taxation B 54 A1 ) 24,938
Taxation HIE (4,674)
Profit for the year F Wi A 20,264
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Notes to the Financial Statements

6 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(a) Business segments (Continued)

EXBERIBESR &)
(a) XBoE (&)

House brand

Agency brand

BT HS R M ot

light source light source
products products
R RERIE  Consolidated
KEER KIRER wE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Assets and liabilities BEEREE
At 31st March, 2008 R-ZZEENF=ZHA=+—H
Assets BE
Segment assets HEEE 63,762 3,792 67,554
Unallocated corporate assets AOBERAREAE 328,221
Consolidated total assets FEEAEMRE 395,775
Liabilities af&
Segment liabilities HEEE 19,110 1,891 21,001
Unallocated corporate liabilities AOBEARAR 3,340
Consolidated total liabilities REBEESE 24,341
House brand Agency brand
light source light source
products products
5mE RE R Unallocated Consolidated
KRER RREM RAE wE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK3$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET Fi&T
Other information Hip &
For the year ended HE-_FTENF
31st March, 2008 ZA=+—HIFE
Additions of property, plant NEME BERRE
and equipment 4 - 648 652
Additions of leasehold land REHETHR
and land use rights T35 A A - - - -
Depreciation of property, ME-BEREBNE
plant and equipment 5,456 - 223 5,679
Amortisation of leasehold land ~ TAE L1 & T
and land use rights S 222 - - 222
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Notes to the Financial Statements

6 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 EEHERIHER B
(a) Business segments (Continued) (a) XX (&)

House brand

Agency brand

light source light source
products products
g w8 RIERE  Consolidated
KRER KRER we
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
Segment revenue Pl g
For the year ended BE_ZT+F
31st March, 2007 ZA=+—HIFE
Turnover = 40,517 11,936 52,453
Results E¥
Segment results D EBEELR 27,969 1,721 29,690
Unallocated corporate expenses, KO AR
net of other income BRE AU A (23,192)
Interest income, net of LB - 0B Bt & A AR
finance costs 1,904
Profit before taxation B B0 A1 VA 8,402
Taxation 1B (2,605)
Profit for the year F 35 F 5,797
House brand  Agency brand
light source light source
products products
KEmE REHRIE  Consolidated
HBRER KBRER wma
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
Assets and Liabilities EERERE
At 31st March, 2007 R-ZFEE+F=ZA=+—H
Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE 75,219 4,495 79,714
Unallocated corporate assets APBRBIEE 266,718
Consolidated total assets REEEBE 346,432
Liabilities aE
Segment liabilities DEBE 16,506 2,108 18,614
Unallocated corporate liabilities a0 S/NCIN=E 3,423
Consolidated total liabilities ReakesE 22,037
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Notes to the Financial Statements

6 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6
(a) Business segments (Continued)

(a)

House brand

BT HS R M ot

EXRBARTHER (&)

B ()

Agency brand

light source light source
products products
5mE RE R Unallocated Consolidated
KRER RREM RAE mE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK3$'000 HK$'000
FET Fi#T Fi&T Fi&T
Other information Hth &R
For the year ended HE—ZTTLF
31st March, 2007 ZA=+—HIFE
Additions of property, plant NEME BERHRE
and equipment 10 - 1 1"
Additions of leasehold land NEMHELHR
and land use rights T A 2,333 - - 2,333
Depreciation of property, mE - BERIENE
plant and equipment 5,060 - 356 5,416
Amortisation of leasehold land ~ &L K
and land use rights 355 R 8 206 - - 206

(b) Geographical segments

The Group's operations are located in the PRC and Hong Kong.
The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s turnover
by geographical market, irrespective of the origin of the goods:

HEDH

REBPRPEREEMIOEEEE TRH
JIAKEZRETIZE D (TREMRE
i) M ERBOM:

2008 2007

—EENF —ETLF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

The PRC, excluding Hong Kong FE TNRERE 16 12

Hong Kong B 9,888 11,413

Asia and Europe oM B BOM 21,602 20,841

North America EZEM 20,496 20,187

52,002 52,453
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Notes to the Financial Statements

6 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6
(b) Geographical segments (Continued)
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment
assets and additions to property, plant and equipment analysed
by the geographical areas in which the assets are located:

Carrying amount
of consolidated
segment assets

EXBERIBESR &)

(b) HBEZW (&)
UNTRZEEMERB ST D BEEER
HERREDE BEEREIN:

Additions of
property, plant
and equipment

BT HS R M ot

Additions of
leasehold land and
land use rights

REDH nEVE -BE REHELH
EERMEE R#&iE Rt fERAE
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
TBENE | ZZETLF |ZBBNE | ZTTLF |ZBENE | ZTTLHF
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET T FET FET FET FHET
Hong Kong BB 5,273 16,138 648 1 -
The PRC, excluding AR -
Hong Kong TEEER 390,502 330,294 4 10 2,333
395,775 346,432 652 11 2,333
7  OTHER INCOME AND GAIN, NET 7 HtBRARWZEFE
The Group
rEE
2008 2007
—EENE —ZETEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Other income HAd 4 A
Bank interest income RITH B A 2,578 1,922
Sundry income HMBBA 900 94
3,478 2,016
Gain, net W 558

Gain on disposal of property, HEME BEREE2WE
plant and equipment 208 -
3,686 2,016

54
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BT HS R M ot

OPERATING PROFIT 8 RERF
The Group
AEE
2008 2007
—EENE —TELF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FEr
Operating profit has been arrived R A TS HBR
at after charging:
Directors’ remuneration (note a) EEMe (Fata)
- Fees e - -
— Other emoluments —Htie 473 836
— Retirement benefits contributions —RRE R 10 10
483 846
Other staff costs Hfh 8 TRA 2,057 3,755
Retirement benefits contributions Hfh 8 TR R
for other staff 111 145
Total staff costs 8 TR A 2,651 4,746
Auditors’ remuneration =SB BN & 450 450
Cost of inventories recognised FEXAERIERAX
as an expense 19,892 22,763
Depreciation and amortisation on Hres R
— owned assets —BEEE 5,556 5,309
- leased assets —HEEE 123 107
— leasehold land and land use rights —MHE b & T A 222 206
Operating lease rentals in respect of THREFHNLCEHERS
land and buildings 715 1,119
Bad debts written off 122 AR 8 34 1
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Notes to the Financial Statements

OPERATING PROFIT (Continued)

Note (a): Emoluments of directors and highest paid employees

(i)

geRw (&)

ffit@): BEERBRSHEESHE

BT HS R M ot

Directors’ emoluments (i) EEME
Details of the remuneration of the directors for the year ended BE_TZNF=ZA=+—HFEIt
31st March, 2008 were as follows: EEMESFBOT:
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits benefits scheme
Directors’ in kind contributions
Name of directors fees HE EUR RIREF Total
ESHE EENd HAtEF srEIHR st
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Executive Directors HITEF
Mr. Chu Chien Tung ABRELE - 181 - 181
Mr. Chu Chick Kei REREE - - - -
Mr. Chu Sen Hei AEEEE - 100 - 100
Non-executive Director FHITEF
Dr. Fung Shui Lun, HRBEL
Anthony - 96 5 101
Independent Non-executive BV HHTEE
Directors
Mr. Hong Yong Hwan BT - 96 5 101
Mr. Zhu Lei Bo BREAE - - - -
- 473 10 483

RAFMHIBAZEBRERAT 2007/08 FiR




Notes to the Financial Statements BFf&§ER3k Mi =t

8  OPERATING PROFIT (Continued)

Note (a): Emoluments of directors and highest paid employees (Continued)

geRw (&)

ffit@): BEERBEHEEME (&)

(i) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (i) EEME (1)
Details of the remuneration of the directors for the year ended BE-ZZ+LHF=A=+—HFEL
31st March, 2007 were as follows: EEMESFBOT:
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits benefits scheme
Directors’ in kind contributions
Name of directors fees e RMR RIREF Total
EEHE EEHe E iz FHEIE R 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FETT
Executive Directors HITEFE
Mr. Chu Chien Tung SERTE - 264 - 264
Mr. Chu Chick Kei RIEREEE - 280 - 280
Mr. Chu Sen Hei REBEE - 100 - 100
Non-executive Director FNITEF
Dr. Fung Shui Lun, BB L
Anthony - 96 5 101
Independent Non-executive — B IHTEE
Directors
Mr. Hong Yong Hwan HER - 96 5 101
Mr. Zhu Lei Bo BREE - - - -
- 836 10 846

Each of Mr. Chu Chien Tung, Mr. Chu Chick Kei and Mr. Chu
Sen Hei has waived respectively the amount approximately
HK$1,769,000 (2007: HK$1,686,000), HK$1,690,000 (2007:
HK$1,410,000), and HK$550,000 (2007: HK$550,000) of
remuneration for the year ended 31st March, 2008.

Tungda Innovative Lighting Holdings Limited Annual Report 2007/08

REBZZZEZN\F=ZA=+—HILF
ERARRLE FERLEERLARR
EHEEZBENEMNS 5 541,769,000
BT (ZEE 41,686,000/ 7T) -
1,690,000 T (ZETLF:
1,410,000/ 7T) }550,000/& T (=%
T+ :550,000/7T) ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements

OPERATING PROFIT (Continued)

Note (a): Emoluments of directors and highest paid employees (Continued)

(ii)

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals included one (2007: two)
director(s), details of whose emoluments are set out in above.
The emoluments of the remaining four (2007: three) individuals
are as follows:

BT HS R M ot

8 RKEEAR (&)

ffit@): BEERBEHEEME (&)

(ii)

ESHE
AfNESFALTRE—R(ZEZL
FRB)EF REATZBEFHBEHR
RECEBRNE (ZTETLF:=4)
AT ZB&mT:

2008 2007

—EENF —EELF

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Salaries and other benefits He hEH 663 1,434
Retirement benefits scheme iR IKIEFIEH 214 5K

contributions 29 30

692 1,464

The number of employees whose remuneration fell within the
following band were as follows:

MEeETNHEEN 28 TABNT:

Number of employees

BB AR
2008 2007
—EENF s
HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 07 7L ZE — 1,000,000/ 7T 4 3

In addition to the above, there were no share options granted
to employees under the Company’s share option scheme during
the year (2007: Nil).

No emoluments were paid or payable to the above highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the financial years ended
31st March, 2008 and 31st March, 2007.

B |l o AN 52 B0 S AR R B A A R T
BMEIREAWERE(ZEZ L
FIE)

REBEZ-ZETN\F=ZA=t+—HBKkZ=
EELF=-A=T—HIEFE ~EE
WENBARAZAMEEMEA L
NERNHSERBNBEALER 2 85K
BERR A E
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9  FINANCE COSTS 9 ®ERK
The Group
AEE
2008 2007
—EENE —TELF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FEr
Interest on bank overdrafts RITEZF B 1 1
Finance charges BE R 18 17
19 18
10 TAXATION 10 %\
(a) Taxation in the income statement represents: AT ATRIBRE
The Group
AEE
2008 2007
—EENE —TELF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Current tax: ARERFRIE -

PRC Enterprise Income Tax R ETER 4,674 2,605

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the
Group has sustained a tax loss for both years.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, Tungda
Lighting (Fujian) Company Limited (“Tungda Fujian”), a subsidiary
of the Company is entitled to exemption from PRC Enterprise
Income Tax for two years commencing from their first profit-
making year of operation and thereafter, they are entitled to a
50% relief from PRC Enterprise Income Tax which is charged at
24% for the following three years. The first profit making year of
Tungda Fujian commenced on 1st January, 2003. The tax holiday
and concession periods were expired on 31st December, 2007.
The applicable income tax rate since 1st January, 2008 was 25%.

Tungda Innovative Lighting Holdings Limited Annual Report 2007/08

RRASERSFEHELRTAERE &
W E MG HIE LB

BB EARAG RIER RARA (B
BRAF (RAERE) ARFZMEBRER
REEEZFFE R MEERRHNP
BERMER WAl RNEE = FRRCHM
50%F B CEMSH (BEHRER24%) °
RARENERERBNFER-ST=F—
A—BAB-2RBAEBEERER=ZEE
+tF+—A=+—HRE BT N\F—
A—BRZEAMBHEAE25% °
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10 TAXATION (Continued)
Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at

1"

60

(b)

10

(b)

BIE (%)

BT HS R M ot

BIAX HEERERFE XA E 2G5 EMN

applicable tax rates: fE 2 # IR
The Group
TEH
2008 2007
—EENFE —EE+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FEr
Profit before taxation B B A& A 24,938 8,402
Tax at the domestic income tax BRI BRI E17.5% 8 2 HIE
rate of 17.5% (2007: 17.5%) (2007:17.5%) 4,364 1,470
Tax effect of expenses not AAHBRAZ 2 BB &
deductible for tax purposes 13 1,058
Tax effect of income not BERBBAZ BB &
assessable for tax purposes (38) (5)
Tax effect of temporary difference AFERER LR EZB 2 HBFE
unrecognised for the year 38 28
Decrease in opening deferred EE AR R EERNE
tax asset resulting from EERIEE E R D
a decrease in tax rate 32 -
Tax effect of tax losses REERERBIBEEBEE G2
unrecognised for the year 328 1,094
Effect of preferential tax REMBEEREZ 2
rates of subsidiaries operating WBARZEBERELE
in other jurisdiction (241) (1,194)
Others Hh 178 154
Taxation charged RIA TR NR 2 B8 4,674 2,605

No provision for deferred taxation has been made in both years
as the amount involved is insignificant.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY 1"
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company is dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
HK$280,000 (2007: a loss of HK$734,000).

MRFTE R BEL AN EXR S BB FE

BRI IR R

RATREFEARGERFERF

RRBIEAEREE ATEIG 2B E R AR R ISR
KA A Bt AR R A280,0008 L (ZEE+

:F518734,00087T) °
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12 EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 BRER
The calculation of the earnings per share is based on the following BRABM TR TSR E -
data:
2008 2007
—2ENEF —EE+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FA&T
Earnings BF
Profit for the year for the purposes of A EEREAREERFN 2
basic earnings per share REE 5= 20,264 5,797
Number of shares RO E
Weighted average number of shares M EEREREF
for the purpose of Z IR AE T &
basic earnings per share 1,105,600,000 1,105,600,000
No diluted earnings per share has been presented for the years ended BHRARRARBEZZENFR_ZEZTLF=H
31st March, 2008 and 2007 as the Company did not have any dilutive =+ —BIFEIEEMEEEE N2 RETR
potential shares outstanding in both years. MY EESRMEFESREERF -
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
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Notes to the Financial Statements

13 ME-BERRE

BT HS R M ot

Furniture,
fixtures and Leasehold
Leasehold equipment improvements Plant and Motor
buildings B %EB HEME machinery vehicles Total
HEEF &L £15 T RE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FHET FET FAET FHET FAET
The Group r&EE
Cost AR
At 1st April, 2006 RZZEEFMA—A 15,001 1,660 1,433 51,236 931 70,261
Exchange realignment ER AR 682 22 - 1,210 18 1,932
Additions NE - 1 - 10 - 1
At 31st March, 2007 RZZZLF=R=1+—H 15,683 1,683 1,433 52,456 949 72,204
Exchange realignment ERAE 1,300 44 - 2,309 34 3,687
Additions NE - - - 4 648 652
Disposal HE - - - - (535) (535)
At 31st March, 2008 R-BBNF=ZA=+-H 16,983 1,727 1,433 54,769 1,096 76,008
Depreciation and impairment NERAE
At 1st April, 2006 RZEZX FMRA—H 1,984 1,099 1,394 11,635 357 16,469
Exchange realignment ER AR 90 12 - 407 7 516
Charge for the year FRZH 773 288 39 4,135 181 5,416
At 31st March, 2007 RZEZ+FE=A=+—H 2,847 1,399 1,433 16,177 545 22,401
Exchange realignment ER R 236 29 - 1,119 20 1,404
Charge for the year FRZH 837 175 - 4,463 204 5,679
Written back on disposal 6 B ] - - - - (383) (383)
At 31st March, 2008 R-BZN\E=A=1+-H 3,920 1,603 1,433 21,759 386 29,101
Net book value REFE
At 31st March, 2008 R-ZEENF=A=+—-H 13,063 124 - 33,010 710 46,907
At 31st March, 2007 RZZZLFE=R=1+—H 12,836 284 - 36,279 404 49,803
Net book value of leased asset HEEERTFE
At 31st March, 2008 R-BBA\F=ZA=t+-H - - - - 605 605
At 31st March, 2007 RZEZ+FE=A=+—H - - - - 232 232

The Group’s buildings are situated in the PRC and are held under land
use rights for 50 years expiring in 2053.

At the balance sheet date, the directors conducted a review of the
Group’s plant and machinery and considered that all of them were worth
at least their net book value.

REBZ BTN R THRE T ERESE
R-_FER=FEm BH505F-

REER EXCHEAEBEZBE RE
U RBAERE ka2 BE

[

=

EREITIR
R E B
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14 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

BT HS R M ot

14 HELHRLHERE

The Group
AEE
2008 2007
—EENE —TELF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FEr
Cost B AR
At beginning of the year F4 10,275 7,597
Exchange realignment TR TR 852 345
Addition NE - 2,333
At end of the year FIR 11,127 10,275
Accumulated amortisation R T
At beginning of the year F4 657 432
Exchange realignment TR TR 55 19
Amortisation for the year NEZEE 222 206
At end of the year FIR 934 657
Net book value BREFE
At end of the year FIR 10,193 9,618
Portion classified as current assets NERRBEEZEH 222 206
Long term portion R HERER D 9,971 9,412

The leasehold land and land use rights are situated in PRC and are held
for 50 years expiring between 2053 and 2056.

One of the leasehold land and land use rights at net book value of
HK$7,767,000. (2007: HK$Nil) has been pledged to a bank to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group.

15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

FEMURFEIREANZHE i &+ e A B
BER_TA=R_ThAFHHEER KIS0

Fo

Hbh—IBRMEEA7,767,0008 L (Z 2T+ F:
m) cHETH R T HEARCEARNEBAAE

RITEE R HEIMR-

15 HMBATEIKRE

2008 2007

—EENE —EELF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHETT TET

Unlisted shares, at cost JE LTI K AE 3,128 3,128
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BT HS R M ot

15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 15
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31st March, 2008 are set
out as follows:

MEARRE (&)
ARAZHBARAR-TEN\F=A=+—HZ
AHERT:

Percentage of
nominal value

Issued and of issued share
fully paid capital/registered
share capital/ capital held
Place of registered by the Company
incorporation/ capital RARE
establishment Place of BETR BRTREA/
Name of company HEmRL/ operation BEBRE/ R A Principal activities
AR BB B i B BewE TR A HEBAH TEXK
Directly Indirectly
E# M
Bright Growth Resources Limited* British Virgin Islands Hong Kong Us$1 100 - Investment holding
EBEAHE B 1% REER
Bright World Resources Limited® British Virgin Islands Hong Kong us$4 100 - Investment holding
EBEAHE B 4ETT REER
Direct Intelligent Limited® British Virgin Islands Hong Kong Us$1 100 - Not yet commenced
business
EBEAHE B 1% HAREE
Ultra Modern Technology Limited* British Virgin Islands Hong Kong Us$2 100 - Investment holding
EBEAHE B Ve REER
Sunpower Technology Limited® British Virgin Islands Hong Kong Us$1 100 - Investment holding
REREARARY EBEAHE B 1% REER
Tungda Electrical & Lighting Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$4 - 100 Trading of light
Limited (“Tungda Electrical”)* ik B 4B source products
RAEERABRLA BEXREMR
(IEREZ])*

RAFMHIBAZEBRERAT 2007/08 FiR
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15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

| Statements BFFSERERMEE

15 HMBEARRE (&)

Percentage of

nominal value
Issued and of issued share
fully paid capital/registered
share capital/ capital held
Place of registered by the Company
incorporation/ capital NN 63
establishment Place of ERTR BRITRAR/
Name of company Rl aye operation BEBRE/ R A Principal activities
AREMH B i 8 g AR HERAL TEEHR
Directly Indirectly
E# &
Light Power (Shenzhen) PRC PRC HK$10,000,000 - 100 Manufacturing and
Company Limited* F F 10,000,000 7T trading of light
2 NRECRI) BRAF source products
HEREEXRER
Tungda Lighting (Fujian) PRC PRC RMB27,000,000 - 100 Manufacturing and
Company Limited H # AR#27,000,0007T trading of light
("Tungda Fujian”)* source products
RARHA(BR) ARAA HEREEXRER
(RARBRE])*
Putian Riwer Lighting Electrical PRC PRC US$312,546 - 100 Manufacturing and
Equipment Company Limited* H # 312,546% T trading of light
BETHRRAERERAA source products
HEREENRER

Note:

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at 31st March, 2008
or at any time during the year.

# Private companies with limited liability.

* Wholly foreign-invested enterprise with limited liability.

Tungda Innovative Lighting Holdings Limited Annual Report 2007/08
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DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16 WEME BERRBZITEAR

The Group
rEE

2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Balance brought forward ACH 4 R 9,934 10,323
Exchange realignment JE R TR 824 568
Refunded R (10,758) (957)
Balance carried forward EHEER - 9,934

The balance of HK$9,934,000 as at 31st March, 2007 represented part
of the deposits paid for two outstanding xenon lamp contracts for the
acquisition of machineries pursuant to contracts with manufacturer in
2004. In 2006, the Group had negotiated with the manufacturer for
the refund of deposits paid. Under the proposed arrangement, the non-
refundable balances of the deposits can be used to partially settle for
the considerations of the machineries supplied by the manufacturers
within specified period from the date of agreements but otherwise will
be forfeited. Impairment losses for the non-refundable balances had
been made for the year ended 31st March, 2006 as the management
of the Group is unable to determine at that stage whether the Group
will purchase such machineries and be able to utilise the non-refundable
deposits.

During the year, the remaining portion of deposit of HK$10,758,000
was refunded from the manufacturer. The manufacturer had forfeited
the amount of the non-refundable balances of the deposits as the Group
had not placed order by the specified date on 11th March, 2008.

RZTZ+F=HA=1—H 9,934,000/ #

BIERBERSZ — N ST FEEERAT
URRERZOBEOTMIN 22BN E R
ZERE AEECHREE N HEEE T
B RBZEERR L 2R ZFF 22 TR
Ol & s ] BP0 RIEE N R BUER B R L2 A
EETATIEME AR ERE ZRE TANETH
R B BHOL W - A EEEIEE 2 REE)
EAKERERBEZSRERERHRDAZRSE
THEEF S RBE-_ZEERF=A=+—H
FE AR EZ AT 2 8 M E L IRERE-

FRO-HEFMEREHR TSI D A
10,758,000 St AR EBEREAH-_TTN
FZRA+—HMEAE 2ERERKRTIR
Bl 2z &l &
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17 INVENTORIES 17 ®EE
The Group
TEH
2008 2007
—ZEENFE —EEHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET F#&T
Raw materials, at cost R R A E 2,627 2,411
Finished goods, at cost BRI AN E 2,981 3,375
5,608 5,786

At 31st March, 2008 and 2007, there were no inventories stated at net
realisable value.

X-FE\FR-FELF=A=T A HE
75 R R B BB B

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18 EBWESZRERHEMEWIERMK
The Group
rEH
2008 2007
—EENE —EERLF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Trade receivables FEUE 5 H 1,532 1,802
Other receivables, deposits HMEWRE &e RIEFHIE
and prepayments 4,222 3,852
5,754 5,654

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and other
receivables approximate to their fair values. The trade and other
receivables are expected to be recovered or recognised as expense within
one year.

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 days to its trade
customers and keeps monitoring its outstanding trade receivables.
Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by senior management of the
Group.

Tungda Innovative Lighting Holdings Limited Annual Report 2007/08

EEZRA BURESFTEREMERERZKE
EEAQXTVEERS BREZFREREAMER
FRRFEM AN —F AW E R A

FEBGETHESEF T RI0ORNEER I
ERAER ZEWHIAE - ERE TS T NENR
HRAN 2 FEYRIR

67



18

68

Notes to the Financial Statements BFf&§ER3k Mi =t

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables, included in trade
and other receivables is as follows:

18 EBWEZRERHEMEWIRR (&)

AEBE R ARYE 5508 N E A B Y AR5 2 &
WE SR ZRE DT :

The Group
rEH

2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Within 3 months =BAR 1,389 1,500
4 months to 6 months m{EAZ=~EA 128 289
7 months to 12 months tEAZ+=@A 13 10
More than 1 year —F A+ 2 3
1,532 1,802

As at 31st March, 2008, trade receivables of HK$701,000 (2007:
HK$1,029,000) were past due but not impaired. These related to a
number of independent customers for whom there is no recent history
of default. Based on past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in their credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances. The ageing
analysis of these receivables is as follows:

HE-_ZTZT)/\FZA=+—HI- BaHELE
BEZEWE S$FRIAEA701,0008 T (T
11,029,000/ 7T) o L JYEAREE B RIF4L 852
ZEBARFBE - BEATLR BREHREDH
ARZEERELRERE LITHNEEES
WEE RS MzSERNER AT EHKE-
REBWE I SEBRITETMIBERRELE
WRIBERBR D ATEA T -

The Group
rEE

2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Less than 3 months past due B ER AR =18 A 612 909
3 months to 1 year past due BMHI=ERE—F 87 118
Over 1 year past due BEIZ N —F 2 2
701 1,029
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BT HS R M ot

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
Trade and other receivables shown in the balance sheet include the
following amounts denominated in the currencies other than the
Company’s functional currency, HK dollars:

18 EBWEZRERHEMEWIRR (&)
REERERPEEE 5508 R EMERIRKA
BAREZIEEER (BL) M2 REEREIN T :

The Group The Company
rEH AT
2008 2007 2008 2007
—E2EN\F —ETLF —BENF ZETLF
United States Dollars ET 2,000 5,000 = -
Renminbi AR 2,408,000 3,032,000 = -

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contain

R IEUE 5 5008 I Bt FE M R 3R 2 B A 3B R R I

impaired assets. BEREBEEE-
19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19 BHERREEE
The Group The Company
A EE AT

2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF —EENE —ZET+F
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000
FET FHET FET FET
Bank balances and cash RITEHRER S 327,297 265,621 51 169

Cash and cash equivalents shown in the balance sheet include the

REEREXRTREMREEEBERIGEEY

following amounts denominated in the currencies other than the (Br) iz RBERENT:
Company’s functional currency, HK dollars:
The Group The Company
r&EH AR
2008 2007 2008 2007
=BENF —ETTLF —EENE —TELF
United States Dollars ETT 8,000 11,000 - -
Renminbi AR 298,774,000 262,433,000 - -
Euro Dollars BT 1,000 1,000 - -

Tungda Innovative Lighting Holdings Limited
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TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20 ERESHEREMEMNER
The Group
TEH
2008 2007
—EENF —ETtLHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F&T
Trade payables FERTE 53R 2,036 2,241
Other payables and accrued charges HMENERERRETER 16,148 15,571
18,184 17,812
The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and other EERA BNESFEREMENERZEKRE
payables approximate to their fair values. The trade and other payables BEREEQNFERE - BHMBENEZRERE
are expected to be settled or recognised as income within one year or b FETBR SR AT — FF MIB B S R R A AR
are repayable on demand. BARERE
An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables, included in trade and REBFABRNE SRIEREMERMERRAZE
other payables, is as follows: NEBSHREBEZRERASTIOT:
The Group
rEH
2008 2007
ZEENF ZETLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Within 3 months =R®ARN 1,288 1,452
4 months to 6 months U fE A 2= <A A 588 655
7 months to 12 months +EAZE+=EA 18 6
More than 1 year —F A E 142 128
2,036 2,241
Trade and other payables shown in the balance sheet include the REEBBRTPENE ZFHIEREMENERA
following amounts denominated in the currencies other than the BRARRZEEEH (Bn) Sz REBEBHNT:

Company’s functional currency, HK dollars:

The Group The Company
rEH N
2008 2007 2008 2007
—BENF —ETF =EENF —EELF
United States Dollars ETT 31,000 50,000 - -
Renminbi AR 12,372,000 12,339,000 - -
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21 OBLIGATION UNDER A FINANCE LEASE 21 EEHEIRIE
At 31st March, 2008, the Company had an obligation under a finance RZZEZNF=ZA=+—H FAEERERENR
lease repayable, i.e. minimum lease payments, as follows: NP HEHSBERERENT:

The Group
rEH
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FA&T
Amounts payable FEAT 5RIE
Within one year —F R 142 152
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEFLF BEEEME 523 38
Total minimum lease payments RIEASEE 665 190
Future finance lease charges REBEHOFEZ (85) (7)
Present value of total minimum HEHEESEEEE
lease payments 580 183
The present value of finance RTFIREEIEZ
lease obligation is due as follows: BEMAAE ZRE:
Within one year —FR" 110 145
In the second to fifth year inclusive EEZERFT REEEMTF 470 38
580 183
Falling due within one year included FFARE B ER —F A I
in current liabilities (110) (145)
470 38

AEEEREEELRHTHE-—WE 1FH
HRPnF-2SHETERESAES -ZHE
FE A LA E A 2 R

The Group leases a motor vehicle under finance lease arrangement for
an initial period of 5 years. The lease does not include contingent rentals.
The leased motor vehicle secures the above lease obligation.
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BT SRR P 5

SHARE CAPITAL 22 R
Number of Nominal
Class shares value Amount
E5l BRGEE HE £8
HK$ HK$'000
BT FET
Authorised:
JEE
At 1st April, 2006, 31st March, 2007 Ordinary 5,000,000,000 0.01 50,000
and 31st March, 2008 AR
R_EZERNFONA—R —ET+F=A=+—H
rFZEENF=ZA=1+—H
Issued and fully paid:
BE#ITRHE:
At 1st April, 2006, 31st March, 2007 Ordinary 1,105,600,000 0.01 11,056
and 31st March, 2008 AR

RZZETXEHNA—B —TTtHF=-A=+—H
R=—FBE/\F=A=+—H

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 12th
July, 2002 for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
persons, including the directors of the Company, full time and part
time employees of the Group and the consultants or advisers of the
Group. Pursuant to the Scheme, the board of the directors may grant
share options to the eligible persons to subscribe for shares in the
Company. Options granted must be taken up within a period of 28
days from the date of options granted and upon payment of HK$1 as
the consideration for the options granted. Unless otherwise terminated
or altered, the Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten years.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme together with shares previously issued
pursuant to options exercised under the Scheme shall not exceed 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time and the
maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
to any one eligible person in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1%
of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

The subscription price shall be determined by the board of directors
and notified to the eligible persons and shall be at least the highest of
(i) the closing price of the shares on the GEM as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the offer date, which must be a
trading day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares on the GEM as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the 5 trading
days immediately preceding the offer date; and (iii) the nominal value
of a share.

23

fB IR T &

RRARZBR-FL A+ - ARBEREE
([5H81)) EERAEBBAL BREARRES.
REE 2R MR BRE MRS 2 5 R SR
RERUEBNRE - REFE EEFUMEE
BALTRTARBBEARR B Ity 2 IR - 15 BUE
VAREHBRER SRS -+ /\BHEES
ARENERBRESASN BT ZREIRIE
ST IERAEHERTIN FHEER +FRE R

IR EIR AL R 2 BB PTS R AR D BB ERR
B[R SRR BT BITTE B AR M 1T 2 B
BEBARA TR HETRAI0% - MPRER+
“ AR HMMAREREN - REERALTREZE
ARSI BB LR RITSBBARR
TEEEITRA1% -

RBEEHEESET XMERERAL AT
BERUAT=FF&EEE () ATHHRRMBRK
MNE2BEEER (ZBLARRXSR) A%
R W 1B ¢ (DB 2 AT B SRR PR AR ) FE R 4R
EBREZ AN AERS BELIERZ P H
B R mEE-
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23 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 23 BRESE (@)
The following tables disclose details of the Company’s share options TREBEE-_ZTTN\F=A=+—HLFER
held by employees (including directors) and the movements in such EE (BRES) MIFARAREREZFBERZSE
holdings during the year ended 31st March, 2008: B BE):
Outstanding Exercised or Outstanding
Exercise at 31.3.2007 granted at 31.3.2008
price Exercisable R-BELE during R=BENF
Date of grant per share period =A=+—H the year =A=+-H
BHAH BRITEE TRBE HARTE FROEIRLY i R AT
HK$
T
3.10.2003 0.345 22.10.2003-21.10.2013 33,140,672 - 33,140,672
21.11.2003 0.452 29.11.2003-28.11.2013 12,659,328 - 12,659,328
45,800,000 - 45,800,000
RESERVES 24 %%
The Group rEH

(a)

Pursuant to the relevant accounting rules and regulations
applicable to foreign investment enterprises established in the
PRC, the Group's PRC subsidiaries are required to transfer not
less than 10% of its profit after taxation to the general reserve
fund until the balance of such fund has reached 50% of their
respective registered capital. The balances of the general reserve
fund cannot be reduced except where approval is obtained from
the relevant PRC authority to set off accumulated losses or increase
capital.

The special reserve represents the difference between the nominal
value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition under
the group reorganisation of the Group took place in July, 2002.

Tungda Innovative Lighting Holdings Limited Annual Report 2007/08

(a)

RBERARTPEKRLIZIERECEZE
Mg R RAP NEET R ERRA
AR B a M A D 10%E R E — R
BEEZE SR EREMBANZ50% R 1Ee
BrIFERRE T BB AR FRE R B
BRI MR BRI EED —REEER
ZHETF

FrhlERIEmEBIE AR 2R mES
REAEER T -FHAETEE
ERRBEMEITARRBRMEER 2 %8
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RESERVES (Continued)

24 % (&)

BT HS R M ot

The Company KAT
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
IR 13 RE RZitER et
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At Tst April, 2006 R-ZEEAGEMA—H 101,669 (5,137) 96,532
Loss for the year FANEE - (734) (734)
At 31st March, 2007 R-_ZEZE+F=A=+—H 101,669 (5,871) 95,798
Profit for the year F W F - 280 280
At 31st March, 2008 R-ZZEZENF=A=+—H 101,669 (5,591) 96,078

The Company'’s reserves available for distribution represent the net
amount of share premium and accumulated losses. Under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands, the share premium of the Company is
available for paying distributions or dividends to shareholders subject
to the provisions of its Memorandum and/or Articles of Association and
provided that immediately following the date on which distribution or
dividend, the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business. In accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association, dividends can be distributed out of the share premium
and retained profits of the Company. As at 31st March, 2008, the
Company’s reserves available for distribution amounted to approximately
HK$96,078,000 (2007: HK$95,798,000).

LEASE COMMITMENTS

As at the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in
respect of land and buildings which fall due as follows:

25

RARZAEDREHBERG ZERZTERZ
FRRIBEFEBEEQNRNE NAR 2D EER]
AR ML SR SRT IR B AT AR R
BERAML,SAABZERA 2 SRR
EREBHESREKER ARRINERERAFE
BRRPIMNEBEMN 2 EE - RIERAR 24
BERER BEARARTRDRERRE S
B RZEENF=ZA=+—H AQRZ
Al D R R 49 7596,078,0008 7T (ZTT L4
95,798,000/ 7T) °

BRI
REHE R AEBREER L REFHOTAH
HEEENRATHRRSMENHRRHEES
AYEIR

The Group
rEH

2008 2007
—EENE ZETLF
HK$’000 HK$°000
Within one year —FR" 408 325
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFLF BEEEME 109 -
517 325

The operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for certain of its office premises and factories. Leases are generally
negotiated for a term of one to two years.

REHOHESEAEBRE THAIEWE NGRS
BN ZEE HO—RIZ—ERMFEEH-
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26 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
Details of the Group’s significant transactions with the following related
parties during the year are as follows:

26

BEALIRS
AREFHEUTHBEALTRERNETZEARSZ
BRI

The Group
TEH
2008 2007
—ZEENFE —EELF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FA&T
Ultimate holding company: SRR A A
Rental expenses et 108 108
Purchases BE 24 -

Messrs. CHU Chien Tung, CHU Chick Kei and CHU Siu Chun (father of
Messrs. CHU Chien Tung and CHU Chick Kei) jointly hold the entire
issued share capital of Tungda Industrial Limited, the ultimate holding
company of the Company.

27 MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS
During the year, the Group entered into a finance lease in respect of
the acquisition of property, plant and equipment with a total capital
value at the inception of the lease of HK$615,000 (2007: HK$Nil).

28 CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

27

28

RRREE REREERKRGAELRE (BRREER
FTERKEREEZXR) ARFARARREL
ZRARIRALER (RH) ARARZHEHITH
Ko

FTEHFRERS

FRAKERBEYE BERRERELEE
615,000 T (ZEZ+F M) FIUREMAER
BEe

BEARRHMAE
The Group
TEH
2008 2007
—EENE —ZETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHETT FET

Amount contracted for but not BLTFIEE B TAER
provided in the financial statements NI Ty P
in respect of

— acquisition of property, —EWME WE R

plant and equipment

- 15,350

Tungda Innovative Lighting Holdings Limited Annual Report 2007/08
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 29 RKBERIFE
The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF REFBAEMERSBEER I REIMEAESETE
Scheme”) for all employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme ([BERTE]) ZREEHEEERAB LT
are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the control ABR BAEEEESHIBA RIEZBEST
of an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and 2 EXIRHEEBASOREMBRIZIETHT X
its employees are each required to make contributions to MPF Scheme MZEEeTEHR - NEBENZRESITEA
at rates specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with FIEZ BAEABERESFEELFAHHR
respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions under
the MPF Scheme.
The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are FERB AR ZEE TR EBUSFTHEIT 2P RIR
members of the Central Pension Scheme operated by the Chinese RETEIK BB AR AR EMER KEAE
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain B¥erTa L -SEREEZT RBRKRESE
percentage of their covered payroll to the Central Pension Scheme to Sl ME—B B ERETMABZHR HRABRESF
fund the benefits. The only obligation for the Group with respect to the N2z 2 E@IER -
Central Pension Scheme is the required contributions, which are charged
to the income statement in the year to which they relate.
During the year, the total cost of retirement benefits contributions FRFARABRER ZERBINHRRBNERE
charged to the income statement of HK$121,000 (2007: HK$155,000) 121,000 7T (ZZZ+4: 155,000 7T)  ZH 7R
represents contributions to the scheme made by the Group at rates BAEEIREET RO 2B E L R MZETE
specified in the rules of the respective schemes. No forfeited ER 2 HRE-RERETBLORKEFTURERIR A
contributions may be used by the employer to reduce the existing level KT o
of contributions.
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 30 MEEEEE
(a) Financial instruments (a) &@IT A
The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied CRITANSHEBREEAR TIIBE +:
to the line items below:
The Group The Company
rEH AAT
2008 2007 2008 2007
“EENF | ZE2LTLHF | ZBBENE | ZTTLHF
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
et FET FET FET FEIT
Assets as per balance sheet BEBRERCEE
Investments in subsidiaries MELARRE 15 - - 3,128 3,128
Amounts due from subsidiaries  FEU KT B 2 B FUE - - 105,155 105,427
Trade receivables B E 5 5R 18 1,532 1,802 - -
Other receivables, deposits Hib R ZE R
and prepayments IR 18 4,222 3,852 104 131
Cash and cash equivalents RekBAEEE 19 327,297 265,621 51 169
Total loans and receivables SR REWRFIREE 333,051 271,275 108,438 108,855
RAFHEBBERFRDE 2007/08 F3;



Notes to the Financial Statements

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

30 BIEKRER (&)

BT HS R M ot

(a) Financial instruments (Continued) (a) £@MIA &)
The Group The Company
AEE RAT
2008 2007 2008 2007
“EENF | ZTTLF | ZBENF | ZTTLF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
5t FET Fr FET FéT
Liabilities per balance sheet BEEBERCARE
Trade payables [ERE 5 70A 20 2,036 2,241 = -
Other payables and Hofth BT ER TR %
accrued charges fEstE A 20 16,148 15,571 1,304 2,001
Obligation under a finance lease B & fA#) & 4& 21 580 183 - -
Total financial liabilities REBHERATE
at amortised cost remaE 18,764 17,995 1,304 2,001
(b) Financial risk factors (b) BiIEBEZE

AEBZEBS R ZRMBERR: HHRAR
(BEINERR RAEE R R EBRRR)
FEERAREABESRE - BEEELHZER
Bl 17 B B I BE R DA R AT A R BRF A A 2K
ZHABRAEZEE

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(i) Market risk
- Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily with
respect to Renminbi (“RMB"). Foreign exchange risk
arises from future commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations. In addition, the conversion of RMB into
foreign currencies is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated
by the PRC government. This currency exposure is
managed primarily through sourcing raw material
denominated in the same currency.

(i) TEEE
- SMNERBER

AEEATRER X B TmMA
EEINERR HPFEAAR
B (TARE]) SNERBIR S
Hig#EIT 2 E¥ER S BERE
ERAENRNEINES &
BRI IN AR IR
SNEE B B ST R B U FTR A 2
SNEE IR BRI - L B
SHEBZFEBRBUAREE
PIEZ R R E IR
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(i) Market risk (Continued)

78

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

During the year ended 31st March, 2008, if HK$ had
strengthened/weakened by 5% against the RMB, with
all other variable held constant, the effect on equity
would have been approximately HK$15,847,000
(2007: HK$12,784,000) lower or higher.

The above sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign exchange rates
had occurred at the balance sheet date and had been
applied to the exposure to foreign exchange risk for
financial instruments in existence at that date. The 5
percentage increase or decrease represents
management'’s assessment of a reasonably possible
change in exchange rates over the period until the
next annual balance sheet date.

No sensitivity analysis for the Group's exposure to
foreign exchange risk arising from financial assets/
(liabilities) denominated in Euro dollars and United
States dollars are prepared since the management’s
assessment of reasonably changes in value of the
Hong Kong dollars against Euros and United States
dollars are insignificant.

The analysis was performed on the same basis for
2007.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from cash at banks.
Bank savings interest received at variable interest rates
that expose the Group’s to cash flow interest-rate risk.

The Group’s finance lease obligation was transacted
and arranged at fixed rates. However, as the amount
that exposes the fair value interest-rate risk is not
significant, in consequence, no material exposure on
fair value interest-rate risk is expected. Even that, the
Group closely monitors the fair value fluctuation of
the finance lease obligation in case of significant
increase in interest rate is foreseen.

BT HS R M ot

30 BIEKRER (&)
(b) BIBEBEZ (&)
(i) TE@EBE (E)

SNER R (4)
Hz_Z2ZN\F=A=+—H
IEFE WAETEARKERY
%8,/ 355% - MATE A EE
BRTNE XEE2EEYE
B -REsss KLY
15,847,000 T (Z 2T+ F:
12,784,000/ 7T) °

L B DT T REE R &
HENEEARLEREFARK
BFEzemMIAZEXZRAR-.
Bmgom b aERoMARE
EEHEXRNHANEE TES
HEAEA L& 2 hate

P BB I B 5 7 T S BT R
ErmARSEEARR &
Ut 37 9 975 52 B A B 7T 3 7T
HENSRER (BE) el
R S 7o

—BBLEZSHREAR
AT

FE ER
AEBZFERARREARITZ
AL - ANRAHZ BN K E
RITEFME SAEREEZE
RenENEAR-

AEEZBEREAEDIZE
EMEGFBERZZH-BHR
BARBREXTFEEN XL
BEEARR REAFHEEMNEX
R EREEERR B &
MERFEMFENE R NEET
REVESEMEROAEND
FEERSER
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 30 BMKREKRERE (&)
(b) Financial risk factors (Continued) (b) EIERAEMEZR (2)
(i)  Market risk (Continued) (i) mHEmEE (&)
—  Interest rate risk (Continued) - FERR (&)

2008 2007

—EENF —ZET+F

Notes HK$'000 HK$°000

Bt FET FET
Floating-rate financial assets FEFIREBEE

Cash and cash equivalents RekReEE 19 327,297 265,621
Fixed-rate financial liabilities BTN X4 gEE

Finance lease obligation BE ML RS 21 (580) (183)

Net interest-bearing assets STEAEFHE 326,717 265,438

Sensitivity analysis BRRE ST

At 31st March, 2008, if interest rates on floating-rate
financial assets had been 1% higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the
year would have been HK$3,267,000 (2007:
HK$2,654,000) higher/lower. No sensitivity analysis
for the Group’s exposure to fair value interest rate
risk arising from financial liabilities is prepared since
the management’s assessment of reasonably changes
in value of amount is insignificant.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the balance sheet date and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for both
derivative and non-derivative financial instruments in
existence at that date. The changes in interest rate
represents management’s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates in that date over the
period until the next annual balance sheet date.

The analysis was performed on the same basis for
2007.

Tungda Innovative Lighting Holdings Limited Annual Report 2007/08
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&5,/ 1K#13,267,0008 7T (—

TET 12,654,000 7T) ° A

REREFHEENGEZ L

EEARR EHITERAEE

EH#WE{ELEXE’J%@@/%@
B E R AT o

WA LU E T 2 EETE TIIRAER
MESEBHHEENEE R RER
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BT REH 2R ERER X2
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)

80

(i)

(i)

Market risk (Continued)

- Price risk
The Group is not exposed to any equity securities risk
or commodity price risk.

The Company is exposed to other price risk in respect
of its investments in subsidiaries. The sensitivity
analysis to price risk in regards to the investments in
subsidiaries cannot be reliably determined due to
numerous uncertainties regarding the future
development of these subsidiaries.

Credit risk
The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.
The carrying amount of the trade and other receivables
included in the balance sheet represents the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial
assets. The Group has policy in place to ensure that sales of
products are made to customers with an appropriate credit
history and the Group performs periodic credit evaluations
of its customers. The Group’s historical experience in
collection of trade and other receivables falls within the
recorded allowances and the directors are of the opinion
that adequate provision for uncollectible trade and other
receivables has been made in the income statement. Further
quantitative disclosure in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables are
set out in note 18.

The credit risk on liquid funds is considered negligible, since
the counterparties are reputable banks with good quality
external credit ratings.

30 HMERRE

BT HS R M ot

B #E)

(b) HBEBEZE (F)

(i)

(i)

i m e ()

- EBRER
7N 55 [ 458 A A R B AN FF
2% 55 78 (B AR LR

ARBEEMB AR ZEREM
A EMERERR R HE R
B 2R B B R X2 6 IR BT 2 R A
R E R AR RREEER
e B R AR BURE S

FEmER
$§l%%?%% [k £
FoERNSHBEE-

BREE

AEEYESEETZEERR -8
REERBRANEKESFARE
RSN RRAEE SR EEN &
BEERBR ARERFI ARG ZERE
NERAEA R EEERRZ TP H
EEM BAKETEEHHER#
TEEM G- AEERNKEE S EE
AR 2 BE KRR T T
EEERARRERLERARERAY
AR Rz FEUSE 5 30 N E e UL
FRAEHEE 2 B E- AR A REIR
Fﬁ%ﬁ%&ﬁ@ﬁ%% RE S B R
SHEBE L2 E—TRE TARA
M mRHMIE18

HRABESIFRNMEERFTA
= IMNBE B AR RV IRTT - UL AERE
EERBRER-
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 30 MEEKER (&)
(b) Financial risk factors (Continued) (b) HERBEZ (&)
(i) Liquidity risk (i) HEE2EE
Individual operating entities within the Group are rEERENSMCBTARERESE
responsible for their own cash management, including the B-EENABRER SRR EHE
short term investment of cash surpluses and the raising of BNMESEINEEER F R &
loans to cover expected cash demands, subject to approval EEERNZENRE EHEAF
by the parent company’s board when the borrowings exceed EERIEFAEE - NEEZBER
certain predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s policy DEREEERRREARSESS
is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity fOUABREAFESREBUFER
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves HEREHNORDHESTE-
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.
The following table details the remaining contractual TRV ASEEERBEREERN
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s financial HERE KV HIR - THARR & A RALIAR
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash enE (BREEAGNFEFENT
flows (including interest payments computed using BRI BIZEFI R - RIR R4S
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at HBITRIR ) U RAEE ] gEHE
the balance sheet date) and the earliest date the Group can KERMEEBRH:
be required to pay:
Total Less than
contracted 1 year
Total undiscounted or payable Between Between
carrying cash flow on demand 1to2 2to5
amount EHREE SRR years years
REE HLRELE NERBHEE -ZMFhA —ZIEFRK
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
2008 —EENE
Trade payables ERE S RIA 2,036 2,036 2,036 - -
Other payables and HibEARR K
accrued charges e &R 16,148 16,148 16,148 - -
Obligation under BB A4 EIE
a finance lease 580 665 142 142 381
18,764 18,849 18,326 142 381
Tungda Innovative Lighting Holdings Limited Annual Report 2007/08 81
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 30 MBEBRER (8
Financial risk factors (Continued) (b) HERBEZ (&)
(i) Liquidity risk (Continued) (i) wEBELERE (&)
Total Less than
contracted 1 year
Total  undiscounted or payable Between Between
carrying cash flow on demand 1t02 2to5
amount  BHIREER PR —FH years years
REE Ren=R8% REKEEE —EWMER “EHER
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET
2007 :%?%@ti
Trade payables ERNES 2,241 2,241 2,241 - -
Other payables and /\ﬁﬂﬁgﬁﬁﬁm
accrued charges e &R 15,571 15,571 15,571 - -
Obligation under BB Ay EIE
a finance lease 183 190 152 38 -
17,995 18,002 17,964 38 -
Capital management (o) EBEXER

82

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to
finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light
of changes in economic conditions.

ARBERES 2 HEE R REERE

BESNB R R G R U TE R
BRI RS 8 2 B 8 BT LR
BEABRANRE B EARRAIED
-

AEEEERNEHHEARARERRR X
B UERSBRERER T A EHREZ
BefEEKFERFNE RSN RO LF
J‘E&%@;ZFEJHX 5T 3 R RS EIRE R
""""" BHBEARBELAR
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 30 MEEKER (&)
(c) Capital management (Continued) () BEXER (&)
Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital MEMRIZE—H NEELAEEERL R
structure on the basis of a total debt-to-total equity ratio. For this ERERE R EE B EME L Rk
purpose the Group defines total debt as total liabilities (which BEERIABRERTE ERLE N RNEE
include interest-bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other Eﬁf’z?}ﬁﬁ,ﬁ! B (BEFEERRE
payables and obligations under finance leases but exclude R e E 5 BRI R E AL FE T RUE IR A A
redeemable preference shares, if any) plus unaccrued proposed %’J?%?E BRsrEUEBEREELENRD
dividends, if any. Total equity comprises all components of equity (/) MRFTEFRRGRE (IE) -84
and redeemable preference shares, if any, other than amounts ARERERNERGHERSRE LRI
recognised in equity relating to cash flow hedges, less unaccrued FRB ez () A1 A] FE B A B A RE R I D (10
proposed dividends. B)BARTEZRARE
During 2008, the Group strategy, which was unchanged from RZZBENF AEERATTLFZR
2007, was to maintain the total debt-to-total equity ratio at the W AR A BRI ER5% E10%RIE
lower end of the range 5% to 10%. In order to maintain or adjust 7}<$2§'I B TIRFFGAE EZJ:I:? PN
the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividend paid to B 1] 88 AR R AT T AR 2 AR B 5RIE - BEAT T
shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to shareholders, &3 Li%éfl‘%ﬂx% REGEBHRE D
raise new debt financing or sell assets to reduce debt. EEENREEE-
(i) The total debt-to-total equity ratios at 31st March, 2008 (i)  EZTTEN\RZBEEEF=A=T
and 2007 were as follows: —AzBEEMEERLLENAT!
2008 2007
—2ENEF —EELF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FHET FA&T
Current liabilities mEBE
Trade and other payables FEE S RIA R
H 1 FE A BR 18,184 17,812
Obligation under a finance lease B M A AR 110 145
18,294 17,957
Non-current liabilities: FRBERE
Obligation under a finance lease RbE AR KRR 470 38
Total debt BREE 18,764 17,995
Total equity ERAE 371,434 324,395
Total debt-to-total equity ratio wmeBEERLR 5.05% 5.54%
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject RARREM B AR EAESF AL
to either internally or externally imposed capital HHNEPRENN 2 B ARIRTE
requirements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

As a result of adopting HKFRS 7, “Financial instruments: Disclosures”,
and the amendments to HKAS 1, “Presentation of financial statements:
Capital disclosures”, certain comparative figures have been adjusted to
conform with changes in disclosures in the current year and to show
separately comparative amounts in respect of items disclosed for the
first time in 2008. Further details of these development are disclosed in
note 4.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2008

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of amendments, new standards and interpretations
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31st March, 2008 and
which have not been adopted in these financial statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact
of these amendments, new standards and new interpretations is
expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on
the Group’s results of operations and financial position.
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